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NEEH
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED 3L THRAF

Chairman’s Statement
ETERE
BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group recorded a revenue
of HK$1,521 million, decreased by 15.9% as compared to last year; and
a net profit of HK$362 million for current year, representing a drop of
43.2% from last year (excluding the profit from discontinued handbag
business).

The significant decrease in current year profit was mainly attributable to
the sluggish global economy and PRC economic growth slowdown. The
Group's main products demand fell amid the market oversupply. Product
prices dropped sharply compared with last year, resulting in a decrease in
profit margin.

During the year, there were significant fluctuations in products prices.
As compared to last year, the average selling price per ton of our main
chemical products, namely methylene chloride and chloroform, dropped
sharply by approximately 44% and 54% respectively during the year
whereas the by-product average selling price per ton rose by approximately
13%. In addition, the average purchase costs of raw materials, mainly
including industrial crude salt and methanol, were stable.

As affected by above factors, gross profit margin of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2012 dropped from 46.7% last year to 34.3% and
the net profit margin (excluding the profit from discontinued handbag
business) decreased from 35.2% to 23.8%.

PROSPECTS

For the coming year, the key business focus of the Group will remain on
the construction of a new plant in Ruichang City, Jiangxi Province. The
Group intends to spend about RMB1.9 billion for development of the
fluorochemical downstream products in two phases. The first production
line was originally planned to put into operation in the first half of 2013.
Since the frequent rainstorms with record high rainfall during 2012 in
Jiangxi province affected the progress of construction works, the expected
date to commence operation for the production line will be postponed to
the fourth quarter of 2013.

The project will be financed by internal funds and bank borrowings. As
at 31 December 2012, the Group maintained bank balances and cash
of approximately HK$1.52 billion. The Group has sufficient cash and
available banking facilities to meet its capital expenditure and working
capital requirements.
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As always, our management team will leverage on our internal technical
innovation and scientific research and development in a pragmatic and
aggressive approach and continue its persistent efforts to make great
strides in the business development of the Group and deliver fruitful
rewards to the shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, I would like to extend our sincere gratitude to our
shareholders, customers and business partners for their persistent support
throughout the year. In addition, | would also like to take this opportunity
to thank all colleagues and staff for their persistent contribution to the
Group.

On behalf of the Board

Wai Siu Kee
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2013
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED 3L THRAF

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWN D

CONTINUING OPERATION - CHEMICAL BUSINESS
Results of Operation

Revenue and net profit attributable to equity holders of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2012 was HK$1,521 million and HK$362
million respectively, representing a significant decrease of 15.9%
and 43.2%, as compared to HK$1,808 million and HK$637 million
respectively for last year. The basic earnings per share was HK43.9 cents
for the year ended 31 December 2012 and HK77.2 cents for last year.

Revenue

The significant decrease in revenue for the year was mainly attributable
to the sluggish global economy and PRC economic growth slowdown,
the demand for the Group’s main products declined and its selling prices
dropped substantially as compared to last year, which resulted in a
decrease in profit margin.

During the year, there were significant fluctuations in products prices. As
compared to last year, the average selling price per ton, excluding tax, of
our main products, namely methylene chloride and chloroform, dropped
sharply by approximately 44% and 54% to Rmb2,600 and Rmb2,500
respectively during the year whereas the by-product of caustic soda's
average selling price per ton rose by approximately 13% to Rmb800. In
addition, the average purchase costs of raw materials, mainly including
industrial crude salt and methanol, remained stable. During the year, the
Group maintained a stable production at full capacity and a satisfactory
quality control.

As affected by the above factors, gross profit margin of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2012 dropped from 46.7% last year to 34.3%
and the net profit margin decreased from 35.2% last year to 23.8%.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses incurred for the year ended 31
December 2012 was HK$58.3 million, representing an increase by 2.5%
as compared to HK$56.9 million for last year. The selling and distribution
expense represented about 3.8% of total revenue for the year, slightly
increased by 0.7 percentage point as compared to 3.1% of last year.
Such increase was attributable to the development of end-user customers
and increase in sales channels. Along with increased shipments, liquid
product packaging costs rose during the year.
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Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses incurred for the year ended 31 December 2012
was HK$107 million, which decreased by HK$32.2 million as compared
to HK$139 million last year. The administrative expenses accounted for
about 7.0% of total revenue for the year with a slight decrease of 0.7%
as compared to 7.7% last year. The expenses for current year included
the pre-operating expenses of HK$5 million for Jiangxi chemical plant and
share option expense of 28.3 million (2011: HK$62.4 million).

Finance costs

The interest expenses incurred for the year ended 31 December 2012
was HK$38.0 million, which increased by HK$25.1 million as compared
to HK$12.9 million last year. Interest expenses rose during the year was
mainly due to the increase in bank financing for the construction of a
new production plant in Jiangxi. As at 31 December 2012, the total bank
borrowings was HK$1,417 million (31.12.2011: HK$967 million). As at
31 December 2012, the Group maintained bank balances and cash of
approximately HK$1,520 million (31.12.2011: HK$1,233 million) which
is sufficient to enable the Group to meet its future capital expenditure
and working capital requirements.

INVENTORIES, DEBTORS’ AND CREDITORS’ TURNOVER

The inventory turnover of the Group maintained at a stable level of 31
days for the year ended 31 December 2012 as compared to 34 days
last year.

Due to the stringent credit control, the average collection period was
controlled within a favourable level of 38 days for the year ended 31
December 2012 as compared to 34 days for last year which is in line
with the normal credit terms of 7 days to 60 days granted by the Group
to its customers.

The Group's creditors’ turnover days were 18 days for the year ended
31 December 2012 as compared to 23 days for the last year which is
in line with the normal credit terms of 7 days to 45 days granted by the
suppliers to the group.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED 3L THRAF

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWN D

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The total shareholders' equity of the Group as at 31 December 2012 was
HK$1,894 million (31.12.2011: HK$1,659 million). As at 31 December
2012, the Group had current assets of HK$1,771 million (31.12.2011:
HK$1,623 million) and current liabilities of HK$390 million (31.12.2011:
HK$425 million). The current ratio was 4.5 as at 31 December 2012 as
compared to 3.8 last year.

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
cash flow and credit facilities provided by its principal bankers in Hong
Kong and the PRC. As at 31 December 2012, the Group had outstanding
bank borrowings of HK$1,417 million (31.12.2011: HK$967 million).
These bank loans were secured by corporate guarantees provided by
the Company and its certain subsidiaries. As at 31 December 2012,
the Group maintained bank balances and cash of HK$1,520 million
(31.12.2011: HK$1,233 million). The Group's net cash-to-equity
ratio (cash and cash equivalents net of total bank borrowings over
shareholders equity) as at 31 December 2012 was 0.05.

The Group's liquidity position remains strong and the Group possesses
sufficient cash and available banking facilities to meet its commitments,
working capital requirements and future investments for expansion.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had a workforce of about 1,000
people. Salaries of employees are maintained at competitive level and
are reviewed annually, with close reference to the relevant labour market
and economic situation. The Group also provides internal training to
staff and provides bonuses based upon staff performance and profits
of the Group. The Group has not experienced any significant problems
with its employees or disruption to its operations due to labour disputes
nor has it experienced any difficulty in the recruitment and retention
of experienced staff. The Group maintains a good relationship with its
employees.

RBEE  MERERBERIE

MR20129F12A31H » AEBEMRRERLE
A18.941887(31.12.2011: 16.59BET) °
R2012F 128318 - AEENRBEEZ
17.718%7£(31.122011 : 1623EHET)
M aEAA390EEr(31.122011 :
425187 7T) - R2012F 12 A3 1 HRREN
RAE45 - MEFRIAE3S -

AEE—MUAPEENRESR - UEF
AR EE A RBITRENEEHEAEE
BEBHNEEES - R2012F12A318 -
KEBMHREERITERBI4ITEST
(31.12.2011 : 9.671BE L) - ZFRITER
AARR REETHERQRREN D AIER
EABI - A20129F 12 831 B AREERITH
#EIZE 15201880 (31.12.2011 : 12.3318
BIL) c AEEMFRSEEELEER(Re R
REEEMRIRITEFEER ARERET )R
2012912 A31HA0.05 °

AEERFZARDNRDES T ABTHH
Re A HBANRTHAE  NENEHE
MBERAE  ZEESHRBENARNKRESR
’EO

&8

R2012F 124318 » AEBHB4I1,000% 8
T - EEHFMEFNRAERFENIKE Tes
Fih - BRYEERBES I MG REET
N - REBMAREBRERNIEN - I
BETRARANSBEBFBEREL - X&EE
WEESBIMNENEEME TRAEHASLE
Um<EBERE  EREMMEBLCRESZN
BT AN TEHIREE - REELESD
BIRRLT -



Corporate Governance Report
TEERWME

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company
believes that sound and reasonable corporate governance practices
are essential for the growth of the Group and for safeguarding and
maximizing shareholders’ interests. On 1 April 2012, the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (“Former CG Code") contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rules governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) was amended and
renamed as Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (“New CG Code"). The Board is committed to complying with
the code provisions as stated in the New CG code to the extent that
the directors of the Company (“Directors”) consider it is applicable and
practical to the Company.

The Company has complied with the code provision in the Former CG
Code during the period from 1 January 2012 to 31 March 2012 and has
complied with New CG Code during the period from 1 April 2012 to 31
December 2012, except for the following deviation:

—  The Group has an Executive Chairman. No individual has been
appointed as a chief executive officer. The Executive Chairman with
the assistance of the Group's senior management team oversees
and manages the Group’s business. Other functions normally
undertaken by a chief executive officer of a company are delegated
to members of the Group’s senior management team. This structure
deviates from the code provision of Code that requires the roles of
the chairman and the chief executive officer to be separate and not
performed by the same individual. The Board has considered this
matter carefully and decided not to adopt the provision. The Board
believes that the current management structure has been effective
in facilitating the operation and development of the Group and its
business for a considerable period of time and that the necessary
checks and balances consistent with sound corporate governance
practices are in place. Accordingly, the Board does not consider it
necessary to change the current management structure. However,
the Board will review the management structure from time to time
to ensure it continues to meet these objectives.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules as a code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions in 2004. All the members of the Board have confirmed,
following specific enquiry by the Company that they have complied
with the required standard as set out in the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2012. The Model Code also applies to other
specified senior management of the Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition and role
The Board comprises:

Executive director

Ms. Wai Siu Kee (Chairman)
Mr. Lee Man Yan

Mr. Yang Zuo Ning

Ms. Wong Yuet Ming

Independent non-executive director
Mr. Wong Kai Tung, Tony

Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron BBS JP

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei

The Board comprises four executive directors (one of whom is the
Chairman) and three independent non-executive directors. The three
independent non-executive directors represent more than one-third of
the Board. In addition, three of the independent non-executive directors
possess appropriate legal, professional accounting qualifications and
financial management expertise.

The principal focus of the Board is on the overall strategic development
of the Group. The Board also monitors the financial performance and the
internal controls of the Group's business operations.

The independent non-executive directors also serve the important
function of ensuring and monitoring the basis for an effective corporate
governance framework. The Board considers that each independent non-
executive director is independent in character and judgment and that
they all meet the specific independence criteria as required by the Listing
Rules. The Company has received from each independent non-executive
director an annual confirmation or confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The independent non-
executive directors are explicitly identified in all of the Company's corporate
communications.

The Chairman is primarily responsible for drawing up and approving the
agenda for each board meeting in consultation with all directors. Notice
of at least 14 days have been given to all directors for all regular board
meetings and the directors can include matters for discussion in the
agenda if necessary. Agenda and accompanying board papers in respect
of regular board meetings are sent out in full to all directors within
reasonable time before the meeting. Draft minutes of all board meetings
are circulated to directors for comment within a reasonable time prior to
confirmation.
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Minutes of board meetings and meetings of board committees are kept
by duly appointed secretaries of the respective meetings and all directors
have access to board papers and related materials, and are provided with
adequate information in a timely manner, which enable the Board to
make an informed decision on matters placed before it.

During the year under review, six full board meetings were held and the
individual attendance of each director is set out below:
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Number of board
meetings attended

Name of director EEpE HESRRE
Ms. Wai Siu Kee Bmimut 6
Mr. Lee Man Yan ENREE 6
Mr. Yang Zuo Ning BIEELE 6
Ms. Wong Yuet Ming F AL+ 6
Mr. Wong Kai Tung, Tony ETRERESE 6
Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron BBS JP FER I EBBSK FHi1 6
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei TR E 6

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with specific
written terms of reference. It comprises 4 members, namely, Ms. Wai
Siu Kee (Chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Wong Kai
Tung, Tong, Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron and Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei. For
appointment of new Director, the background, experience, professional
skills, availability to commit to the affairs of the Company and, in case of
INED, the independence requirements set out in the Listing Rules, of the
potential appointee will be taken into consideration.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, all newly
appointed director of the Company shall hold office until the next AGM
and shall then be eligible for re-election. Every Director, including those
appointed for a specific term shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years at the AGM. The retiring Directors shall be
eligible for re-election.

The Company's circular to be despatched to shareholders of the

Company will contain detailed information of the Directors standing for
re-election.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 2001 and its current members
include:

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Kai Tung, Tony
Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron BBS JP

The Board considers that each Audit Committee member has broad
commercial experience and there is a suitable mix of expertise in
accounting, legal and business on the Audit Committee. The composition
and members of the Audit Committee complies with the requirements
under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The new written terms of reference
which describe the authority and duties of the Audit Committee were
adopted in March 2012 to conform to the provisions of the New CG
Code, a copy of which is posted on the Company's website.

The Audit Committee meets regularly to review the Group's financial
reporting and other information to shareholders, the system of internal
controls, risk management and the effectiveness and objectiveness of
the audit process. The Audit Committee also provides an important
link between the Board and the Company's auditors in matters coming
within the scope of its terms of reference and keeps under review the
independence and objectivity of the auditors.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed internal
controls and financial reporting matters including a review of the accounts
for the year ended 31 December 2012.

During the year, four Audit Committee meetings were held and the
individual attendance of each member is set out below:

FREAT
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EEYRAZERZEGNEYABEZE
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FEREESE BERTETIEENMKE
HEEHRAFEI2NVEZHTE - AEEHE]
TEEARTAGEX S#NNEZZETER
DEBENEmRESEDR2012F3 AFE
W BERESNE RN ARRREER -

BB TR A ARE 2T 5E
BRETERRZEMER - REPEERL -
BB E IR M B IIBIE 2B W AR - B
ZERUYREFENAARHAIcHZER
BR - EEBESEASERTRBMN S
ST R RRHE

EVZESCRERERIASEMRMNZ
SETRBINRIER - 32 Bt A EREHE N B TS 1

BWEFRHEETH® - HPEEEMEZE2012
FI2A3BIEFEz&5RA -

FR - HEHIREREZESS
BRI T

& - fERIKE

Number of attendance

Name of member REHA HERE
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei MR E 4
Mr. Wong Kai Tung, Tony TRUCGR A 4
Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron BBS JP FERFEBBS A F A1 3
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2005 and its current
members include:

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Kai Tung, Tony
Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron BBS JP

All members of the Remuneration Committee are independent non-
executive directors. The Remuneration Committee advises the Board
on the Group's overall policy and structure for the remuneration of
directors and senior management. The Remuneration Committee
ensures that no director or any of his associate is involved in deciding
his own remuneration. The new terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee were adopted in March 2012 to conform to the provisions of
the New CG Code, a copy of which is posted on the Company’s website.

In determining the emolument payable to directors, the Remuneration
Committee takes into consideration factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and the
desirability of performance-based remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee has met during the year to determine
the policy for the remuneration of directors and assess performance of
executive directors and certain senior management and all members
have attended in the meeting.

Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the auditors of the Company
only provided audit services to the Company.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established in March 2012 and its
current members include:

Ms. Wai Siu Kee (Chairman)

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei

Mr. Wong Kai Tung, Tony

Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron BBS JP

The majority members are independent non-executive directors. The
Nomination Committee has the duty of reviewing annually the board
structure and composition.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee were adopted in
March 2012 to confirm to the provision of the New CG Code, a copy of
which is posted on the Company’s website.

The Nomination Committee has met during the year to approve and
adopt its terms of reference, all members have attended in the meeting.

TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction on his appointment, so as to ensure that he has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Group and that he
is fully aware of his responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant regulatory requirements. There are also arrangements in place
for providing continuing briefing and professional development to Directors
at the Company's expenses whenever necessary.

The Company provides regular updates and presentations on changes
and developments relating to the Group's business and the legislative
and regulatory environments to the Directors at Board meetings or
through emails.

The Directors are committed to complying with Code Provision A.6.5 of
the New CG Code which came into effect on 1 April 2012 on Directors’
training. All Directors have participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and
provided a record of training they received for the year ended 31
December 2012 to the Company. The type of training received is
summarized below:

—  reading regulatory updates; and

— attending seminars/forum/workshops relevant to the directors’
duties.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Wong Yuet Ming joined the Group in 2004 and has been the
company secretary of the company since 2006. She is responsible
for advising the Board on governance matters and facilitates induction
and professional development of the Directors. The appointment and
dismissal of the company secretary are subject to the Board approval in
accordance with the Articles of Association. Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules which came into effect on 1 January 2012, Ms. Wong has
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in the year
under review.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of internal controls of
the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Board is committed
to implementing an effective and sound internal controls system to
safeguard the interest of shareholders and the Group's assets. The
Board has delegated to executive management the implementation of
the system of internal controls and reviewing of all relevant financial,
operational, compliance controls and risk management function within an
established framework.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The directors are responsible for the preparation of accounts for each
financial period which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing
the accounts for the year ended 31 December 2012, the directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently;
adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong
Kong Accounting Standards; made adjustments and estimates that are
prudent and reasonable; and have prepared the accounts on the going
concern basis. The directors are also responsible for keeping proper
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Group.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Company has only one class of shares. All shares have the same
voting rights and are entitled to the dividends declared. The rights of
the shareholders of the Company are set out in Company's Articles of
Association.

Shareholders of the Company can: (i) convene an extraordinary general
meeting; (i) forward enquiries to the board of directors; (iii) forward
proposals at shareholders’ meetings and (iv) nominate Directors for
election. Details of relevant procedures are available on the Company’s
website.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information about the
Group's performance to shareholders through the publication of interim
results and annual results in a timely manner. In addition to dispatching
circulars, notices and financial reports to shareholders, additional
information is also available to shareholders on the website of the
Company.

The annual general meeting provides a useful forum for shareholders to
raise comments and exchange views with the Board. Shareholders are
encouraged to attend annual general meetings for which the Company
gives at least 21 days' notice. The Chairman and Directors and external
auditors are available to answer questions on the Company's businesses
at the meeting.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
directors. In addition, poll voting procedure is included in the circular to
shareholders dispatched together with the annual report.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents for the year ended 31 December 2012.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEEEHN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. WAI Siu Kee, aged 68, Chairman of the Company who joined the
Group since its establishment in 1976. She is also the founder, chairman
and chief executive officer of Lee & Man Handbags Holding Limited
(Stock Code: 1488). Ms. Wai has more than 47 years of experience in
the manufacturing industry. She is responsible for the development of
corporate strategies, corporate planning and overall management of the
Group and in particular the marketing and development of the business
of the Group. Ms. Wai is the honorary permanent president of the Hong
Kong Baptist University Foundation.

Mr. LEE Man Yan, aged 35, an Executive Director and Managing
Director of the Group. He is in charge of the corporate and strategic
planning of the chemical business segment, and is responsible for
the procurement, staff recruitment, public relations in the PRC and
management operations of the chemical business. He graduated from
the University of British Columbia, Canada with a bachelor's degree in
commerce. He joined the Group in 2000. Mr. Lee is a son of Ms. Wai
Siu Kee, the Group's Chairman. Mr. Lee is also a member of Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Committee of Jiangxi.

Mr. YANG Zuo Ning, aged 51, an Executive Director and Deputy
Managing Director of the Group. He joined the Group in 2006. He is
a national acclaimed senior engineer and has 30 years of production
experience in chlor-alkali industries. He is responsible for the production
supervision, corporate strategic planning and general management of
Jiangsu Lee & Man Chemical Ltd.

Ms. WONG Yuet Ming, aged 48, an Executive Director, Financial
Controller and Company Secretary of the Group. She is also the company
secretary of Lee & Man Handbags Holding Limited (Stock Code:1488).
She joined the Group in 2004 and has over 23 years of experience
in the field of auditing and accounting. She holds a master's degree in
business administration from the University of Surrey, United Kingdom.
Ms. Wong is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. She is responsible for the supervision and
management of the Group's financial matters.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WONG Kai Tung, Tony, aged 70, an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Group. He has been a practicing lawyer in Hong Kong
since 1968 and has also been admitted as a solicitor in England and
Wales. He is currently a consultant at Messrs. Hastings & Co., Solicitors
and Notaries.

Mr. WAN Chi Keung, Aaron BBS, JP, aged 63, an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Group. He holds a Master Degree in Business
Administration of the Chinese University of Hong Kong and a Master
Degree in Buddhist studies of the University of Hong Kong, also an
associate of the Institution of Business Agents, a member of the Land
Institute (London), an associate of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators
and a fellow of The Institute of Administrative Accounting. He is engaged
in the business of property valuation and property auction and has over
30 years of related experience.

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei, aged 35, an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Group. He is a partner of Morison Heng, Certified Public
Accountants. He holds a master of science degree of the Imperial College
of Science, Technology and Medicine, the University of London. He is
a member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Heng serves as an independent non-executive director in China Fire
Safety Enterprise Group Limited (Stock Code: 0445), Matrix Holdings
Limited (Stock Code:1005) and Lee & Man Handbags Holding Limited)
Stock Code:1488)whose shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LAM Hiu Fung, aged 42, Deputy Financial Controller of the Group.
He joined the Group in 2005 and has 19 years of experience in financial
management. He holds a bachelor's degree in Accountancy from City
University of Hong Kong and a master's degree in International Business
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He
is responsible for the supervision on the financial matters, tax issues and
general management of Jiangsu Lee & Man Chemical Limited.

Mr. HUI Jun, Dan, aged 58, Sales Director of the Group. He joined the
Group in 2005 and has over 31 years experience in sales, marketing and
business development in overseas and PRC enterprises. He is responsible
for developing the Company's sales strategies, exploring potential markets
and logistics management of Jiangsu Lee & Man Chemical Ltd.

Mr. XIA Xu Dong, aged 38, Director of Production of Jiangsu Lee &
Man Chemical Ltd. He joined the Group in 2006 and has 16 years of
production experience in chlor-alkali industries. He is responsible for the
production and general management of Jiangsu Lee & Man Chemical Ltd.

Dr. TSE Man Kin, aged 41, Director of Research & Development of the
Group. He joined the Group in 2008 and has 18 years of experience
in chemical research and research management. He holds a Ph.D in
Chemistry from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and is a member
of the American Chemical Society. He is responsible for the research and
development of Jiangsu Lee & Man Chemical Ltd.

Mr. WU Zeng Long, aged 43, Director of Sales of Jiangsu Lee & Man
Chemical Limited. He joined the Group in 2007 and has 20 years of
experience in sales, marketing and business development. He holds a
bachelor's degree in applied chemistry. He is responsible for sales and
logistics activities of Jiangsu Lee & Man Chemical Ltd.

Mr. CHEAH Ming Huat, aged 40, Financial Controller of Jiangxi Lee
& Man Chemical Limited. He joined the Group in 2011 and has 15
years of experience in financial management. He is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and chartered
accountant of Malaysian Institute of Accountants. He is responsible for
the supervision on the financial matters, treasure management, internal
control, tax issues and general management of Jiangxi Lee & Man
Chemical Limited.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and the Group is
principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of chemical products.

The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 29.

An interim dividend of HK8 cents per share amounting to
HK$66,000,000 in aggregate was paid to the shareholders during the
year.

The directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK8
cents per share to the shareholders on the register of members on 23
May 2013, amounting to HK$66,000,000 in total, and the retention of
the remaining profit for the year of HK$229,937,000.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment at a
cost of approximately HK$319,842,000 for the purpose of expanding its
business. Details of these and other movements in the property, plant
and equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors

Ms. Wai Siu Kee (Chairman)
Mr. Lee Man Yan

Mr. Yang Zuo Ning

Ms. Wong Yuet Ming

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Wong Kai Tung, Tony

Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron BBS JP

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei

In accordance with the provisions of the Company's Articles of Association,
Ms. Wai Siu Kee and Mr. Wong Kai Tung will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election.

The term of office of each of the other independent non-executive
directors is the period up to his retirement as required by the Company’s
Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Ms. Wai Siu Kee has entered into a service agreement with the Company
on 1 September 2011 for a period of 3 years, which will continue
thereafter unless and until terminated by either party by three months’
prior written notice.

Mr. Lee Man Yan has entered into a service agreement with the Company
for an initial period of three years commencing 16 August 2010, which
will continue thereafter unless and until terminated by either party by
three months' prior written notice.

Mr. Yang Zuo Ning and Ms. Wong Yuet Ming have each renewed into
a service agreement with the Company for a fixed term of one year
commencing 27 June 2012, which will be terminated by either party by
three months' prior written notice.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

At 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of directors and
chief executives of the Company and their associates in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance (the “SFO")
which have been notified of the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required
to be kept pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) were as follows:

(a) Long positions in shares of the Company

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Number of issued

EERRHRERKGPZER

R2012F 12 A3, A RAIEEZERESTT
BABRKEEZHBEANRARA T R EBH
E(TERBHLBEKRIN(ESRBEK
B 1) SEBXVER) M AR 15 K AR B IR e B W 78 AR
BEAREEHEXNVBEIRSD AT HE
RARREEBBERRBHAR AR ((BZA])
NEBERSNAR B BHNEHF L EE
Bl 352167817 B 2 & o, s E IR IRE: X P
FHLEMRB( EERA Dz EHARESE
TEFR G 2IZEFR(ZETR DAMS AR
RIRBE R FT 2 S ORI ¢

(@) RAERARBZHER

ARAREFRR01B T2 LB

Percentage of
the issued share capital

Name of director Capacity ordinary shares held of the Company

EEpA 8% ZERHE HEBRITRAB DL

Lee Man Yan Held by controlled corporation 618,750,000 75%
(note)

FXR HEEEERE (Btat)

note: These shares are held by Fortune Star Tradings Ltd. (“Fortune Star").

(b) Share options

Number of ordinary

Mfat : £ at B 5 T3 B9 Fortune Star Tradings Ltd.
([Fortune Star] )35 -

(b) BB

Percentage of

shares subject the issued share capital

Name of director Capacity to options granted of the Company
EEpA 14 ERHEERECSBREE HEBRITRAB DL
Lee Man Yan Beneficial Owner 82,500,000 10%
FXR BEmEEA
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ESRRNRERKRGRZER(Z)

(c) Long positions in shares of the associated corporations of (c) RAQFEELEE 2RO FE
the Company

Percentage

Name of of the issued shares

associated Number of issued of the associated

Name of Director Capacity company ordinary shares held company

FriFE 1T ek

EEpA 8% HEEE B HERBE ERITRABOLE

Lee Man Yan Beneficial owner Fortune Star 45 (note) 45%
FXR BEREAA (B1t)

note: As Fortune Star owns more than 50% of the Company, Fortune Star is an
associated corporation of the Company under the SFO. The entire issued share
capital of Fortune Star is owned by Mr. Lee Man Yan, a Director, as to 45% and
Mr. Lee Wan Keung as to the remaining 55%. Ms. Wai Siu Kee is a director of

Fortune Star.

Other than disclosed above, none of the directors or the chief executive,
or any of their associates, had any interests or short positions in any
shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations, which had to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein or which were required, pursuant to the Model
Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SHARE OPTIONS

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company on 14 December
2001, under which the directors or the chief executive of the Company
or their associates may be granted options to subscribe for shares in the
Company.

Details of the share option scheme and movement of the share options
during the year are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme disclosed above, at no time during
the year was the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
and fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2012, shareholders (other than directors and chief
executive of the Company) who had interests and short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company which have been disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Number of issued

FERR

R2012F12A31H - RE(AQRFEEZHR
BITEHABBRIN RARE 2 IRHD RAERR G
o BAREES R EEEMEXVIBE2 L3
DEBRARBHEE « KB RLERIRIEE
MEAEGBIE336(KER AR EIFE 2 B
ZRERRABIT

HR

Percentage of
the issued share capital

Name of shareholders Capacity ordinary shares held of the Company

REME 514 EBERHE HEBRITRAB DL

Fortune Star Beneficial owner 618,750,000 75%
EREEA

Other than disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, the Company Bk EXFTH#REE - R2012F 12 4318 - #i &

has not been notified by any persons (other than directors and chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions for the year are set out in note 33
to the consolidated financial statements which are also the discloseable
connected transaction pursuant to Listing Rules. In the opinion of the
independent non-executive directors, these transactions entered into by
the Group were:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) either (a) on normal commercial terms; or (b) where there was no
available comparison, on terms that were fair and reasonable so far
as the shareholders of the Company were concerned;

(i) either (@) in accordance with the terms of the agreements; or (b)
where there were no such agreements, on terms no less favourable
than those available to or from independent third parties; and

(iv) within the relevant cap amounts as agreed by the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other transactions which need

to be disclosed as connected transactions in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than as disclosed under the heading “Connected transactions”, no
contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding company or
any of its fellow subsidiaries and subsidiaries was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly and
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group's five
largest customers were less than 30% of total revenue.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the Group's five
largest suppliers were approximately 66% of the Group's total purchases
and the purchases attributable to the Group's largest supplier were
approximately 31% of the Group's total purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders which, to the
knowledge of the directors, owned more than 5% of the Company's
issued share capital had any interest in the share capital of any of the five
largest customers of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman lIslands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule

3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent
non-executive directors are independent.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company's operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
directors and eligible employees. Details of the scheme are set out in
note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 31 December 2012.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of the
Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Wai Siu Kee

CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 18 March 2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Y8 M A% BAD

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Lee & Man
Chemical Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 29 to 97,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2012, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2012, and of
the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong 18 March 2013
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(For the year ended 31 December 2012)

Continuing operation
Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Net gain (loss) from fair value changes on
derivative financial instruments

Selling and distribution costs

General and administrative expenses

Research and development cost

Finance costs

Share of (loss) profit of jointly controlled entities

Profit before taxation
Income tax expense

Profit for the year from continuing operation

Discontinued operation

Profit for the year from discontinued operation

Gain arising from reclassification of translation
reserve upon distribution in specie

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive (expense) income

Exchange differences arising from translation

Reclassification of translation reserve upon
distribution in specie

Share of reserve of jointly controlled entities

Net adjustment on cash flow hedges

Other comprehensive (expense) income
for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per share from continuing and
discontinued operations:
— Basic (HK cents)
— Diluted (HK cents)

Eamings per share from continuing operation:
— Basic (HK cents)
— Diluted (HK cents)

(B ZE20125F 128318 ILFE)
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2012
HK$’000
TR

1,520,512
(998,257)

522,255
144,630

6,970
(58,312)
(106,788)
(51,433)

(38,046)
(325)

418,951
(57,014)

361,937

361,937

(2,116)

(4,503)

(6,619)

355,318

43.9
43.9

43.9
43.9

2011
HK$'000
THAT

1,808,348
(963,084)

845,264
55,298

(177)

(56,897)

(138,959)

(4,136)

(12,853)
7

687,547
(50,584)

636,963

33,327

6,090
39,417

676,380

71,957

(6,090)
221
(2,963)

63,125

739,505

82.0
81.4

77.2
76.7
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(At 31 December 2012) (HA20129F12A318)

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Prepaid lease payments

Intangible assets

Deposits paid for the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment

Deposit paid for land use right

Interests in jointly controlled entities

Loan to a jointly controlled entity

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Prepaid lease payments

Trade and other receivables

Amount due from a jointly controlled entity
Derivative financial instruments

Bank balances and cash

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables

Amounts due to related companies
Taxation payable

Bank borrowings — due within 1 year

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

FRBEE

E NI G

BENEEFR

BIEE

BEWE BEKX
G EPARA N ka

TiEREZENRE
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HFEEHIERZER
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Notes
Kzt

15
16
17

18
21

19
16
20
21
22
23

24
25

26

2012
HK$'000
FTET

1,346,493
63,291
7,337

205,970
9,046
25,047
64,390

1,721,574

76,253
941
160,038
6,211
6,941
1,520,219

1,770,603

152,025
6,989
12,629
218,826

390,469

1,380,134

3,101,708

2011
HK$'000
TAT

1,124,535
45,454
8,443

14,613
3,045
4,934
9,400

1,210,424

95,620
929
293,601

1,233,108

1,623,258

190,234
201
14,738
220,148

425,321

1,197,937

2,408,361



NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Bank borrowings — due after 1 year
Derivative financial instruments

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Reserves

The consolidated financial statements on pages 29 to 97 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 18 March 2013

and are signed on its behalf by:

Wai Siu Kee
BOH
Chairman
e

FRBEE
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2012
HK$'000
FTET

1,198,130

9,739

1,207,869

1,893,839

82,500
1,811,339

1,893,839

2011
HK$'000
TAT

746,600
3,140

749,740

1,658,621

82,500
1,576,121

1,658,621

FOBEEFI7EMB LAV BERERER
20133 1sHEEF BB RIRETRZ
TR TINEEREREE

Lee Man Yan

FXR

Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERmEER

(For the year ended 31 December 2012)

(BZE2012F12A31HILFE)

Non-
Asset distri- Safety Share
Share Share revaluation  butable fund Translation ~ Hedging  options Special  Accumulated
capitl  premium  reserve  reseve  reseve  feserve  feseve  reseve  reseve  profits Total
BE  FUAK %3 BHE
& BROEE  EfEG BE  EARE ENRE  HAGER i BRRE 2R At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK 000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Téx Thn TEr  FTEr  TEr TR TEr TEr  TEr  TEr  TEn
(notei) (note )
(i) (RzEi)

A1 Januay 2011 P011E1R1 Q500 20307 668 59575 X SR04 (67990) 1055583 1299298

Exchange differences arising fiom translation REEMELHELZE - - - - - 71957 - = = = 71,957

Share of resenve ofjoinly controlled enties EiEAREHE R B = = = = = 0l = = = = 01

Net adjustment on cash flow hedges Rensh AREE - - - - - - (2963) - - - (2963)

Reclassification upon distibution in specie RENA RHES] = = - - - (6090) - - - - (6090)

Other comprehensive income (expense) for the year  FREf2ERE (i) - - - - - 66,088 (2963) - - - 63,125

Proft for the year ERER - - - - - - - - - 676380 676380

Total comprehensive income (expense) for the year ~ FAZERE( )88 - - - - - 66,088 (2963) - - 676380 739505

Recogniton of equitysetfled share-based payments ~ BEZUAA & A 2 X - - - - - - - B30 - - B30

Derecognition upon distibution in specie (Note 1)~ &7 REEERER (Kt 12) - - (6642) - - - - - (9372)  (199038)  (19505)

Cash dividends recognised as distribution BASRIBERE - - - - - - - - - (2475000  (2475500)

Transfer to non-distibutable reserve fund &N DEEEES - - - 67,362 - - - - - (67362 =

At31 December 2011 RO1E128318 82,500 20,307 = 126,937 = 141965 (2963) 129174 (97362) 1258063 1658621

Exchange differences arising from translation REEMELNELZE - - - - - (2,116) - - - - (2116)

Net adjustment on cash flow hedges BendinBREE - = = = = ) - - - (4503)

Other comprehensive expense for the year EREpRLEE - - - - - Q1e)  (4503) - - - (6619)

Proftfor the year FREF = - - - - - - - - 361937 361937

Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year — EREH2E (%) Ha - - - - - @116 (4503) - - 31937 35318

Recogniton of equitysetfled share-based payments B RAEE AR 25 H - - - - - - - 282% - - 282%

Cash dividends recognised as distibution BERARLALRE = - - - - - - - - (165000  (165000)

Transfer to non-distibutable reserve fund &N DREEES - - - 39,703 - - - - - (39703) =

Recogniton of safety fund resenve TREGRELRD - - - - 16,644 = = = = = 16644

At 31 December 2012 R20125128318 82,500 20,307 = 166,640 16,644 139,849 (7466) 157430 (97362) 1415297 1893839

notes: Wit -

0) According to the relevant laws in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"), wholly (i) BIRPEARILME([HEDERER - EFE
foreign-owned enterprises in the PRC are required to transfer at least 10% of their HIINE 1 AL 5D 10%5R 1805 T (IR IE R
net profits after taxation, as determined under the PRC accounting regulations, to BEEtREETE)ETADRER  BERHELS
a non-distributable reserve fund until the reserve balance reaches 50% of their FRIE BT E A5000 o A ZFEENBED KRR
registered capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made before the distribution SRR - T DIRFEHATREEEBEFE
of a dividend to equity owners. The non-distributable reserve fund can be used to BEE) < RBFZHN - TAIDIREEETED
offset the previous years' losses, if any. The non-distributable reserve fund is non- K °
distributable other than upon liquidation.

(i) The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the nominal  (ii) NEBZHRIFEBE A ARBB2001F12A2

value of the share capital issued by the Company and the nominal value of the
share capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a group reorganisation in
December 2001.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2012) (E(ZE2012F12A3181EFE)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before taxation:
Continuing operation
Discontinued operation

Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Share-based payment expense
Finance costs
Release of prepaid lease payments
Amortisation of intangible assets
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Net (gain) loss from fair value changes on

derivative financial instruments

Interest income
Share of loss (profit) of joint controlled entities

Operating cash flows before movements in

working capital
Decrease (increase) in inventories
Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivables
Decrease in trade and other payables
Increase (decrease) in derivative financial instruments
Increase in amounts due to related companies

Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
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2012
HK$'000
FTET

418,951

418,951

110,823
28,256
38,046

929
1,196
16

(6,970)
(64,378)
325

527,194
19,367
137,208

(23,840)
2,125
6,788

668,842
(59,761)

609,081

2011
HK$'000
TAT

687,547
37,603

725,150

103,995
62,370
12,853

1,008
1,055
334

177
(25,889)
)

881,046
(34,130)
(148,288)
(7,480)
(530)

690,618
(62,500)

628,118



LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED 3L THRAF

(For the year ended 31 December 2012) (#Z=2012F12A3181EFE)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Deposits paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment
Derecognition of cash of subsidiaries upon Spin-off
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Loan to a jointly controlled entity
Advance to a jointly controlled entity
Payment for prepaid lease payments
Deposit paid for land use right
Purchase of intangible assets
Interest received
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Further capital injection in a jointly controlled entity

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Bank borrowings raised

Repayment of bank borrowings

Dividends paid

Interest paid

Repayment to related parties

Settlement of derivative financial instruments
under hedge accounting

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF CHANGES IN EXCHANGE RATE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF
THE YEAR
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2012
HK$'000
FTET

(437,428)

(71,091)
(54,873)
(6,211)
(16,970)
(5,963)

64,378

7
(19,632)

(547,783)

562,195
(146,827)
(165,000)

(33,962)

(4,084)

212,322

273,620

1,233,108

13,491

1,520,219

2011
HK$'000
TAT

(39,397)
(33,703)
(18,749)
(9,400)
(7,470)
(2,990)
(904)
25,889

201
(86,523)

803,191
(251,170)
(247,500)
(11,345)
(6,754)
(1,508)
284,914

826,509

393,385

13,214

1,233,108
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
rE SRR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2012) (E(ZE2012F12A3181EFE)

1.

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of
the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its ultimate holding
company and immediate parent is Fortune Star Tradings Limited
(“Fortune Star”), a company which is incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. Its ultimate controlling party is Mr. Lee Wan Keung.
The address of the registered office of the Company is disclosed in
the section “Corporate Information” to the annual report.

On 22 June 2011, as part of a reorganisation of the Group's
businesses, the Company effected a spin-off of Lee & Man
Development Company and its subsidiaries (the “Handbags”
Group”) which are principally engaged in the manufacture and sale
of handbags (the “Handbags Business”) by way of a distribution
in specie to the Company's shareholders on a pro rata basis (the
“Spin-off”).

Following the Spin-off, the Group was principally engaged in
the manufacture and sale of chemical products (the “Chemical
Business”).

Prior to the Spin-off, the functional currency of the Company was
United States dollars. Because of the Spin-off, the Company's
remaining subsidiaries would principally operate in a Renminbi
("RMB") environment. The directors reassessed the functional
currency of the Company and changed to RMB as RMB better
reflects the underlying transactions, event and condition that are
relevant to the Company.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK dollars”) as the Company is listed in Hong Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and the
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 35.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS")

In the current year, the Company has applied the following

amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of

Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets

Financial Instruments: Disclosures —
Transfers of Financial Assets.

Amendments to HKFRS 7

The application of the above amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group's financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED 3L THRAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M EE

(For the year ended 31 December 2012) (EZE2012F12A318IEFE)

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS")

(CONTINUED)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 9

and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)
HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 32

HK(IFRIC) — Int 20

P I SR

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2009-2011 Cycle!

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities!

Mandatory Effective Date of
HKFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosures?

Consolidated Financial Statements,
Joint Arrangements and
Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities: Transition Guidance!

Investment Entities?

Financial Instruments?
Consolidated Financial Statements!
Joint Arrangements!

Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities!
Fair Value Measurement!

Employee Benefits!
Separate Financial Statements'

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures!

Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Income?*

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities?

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine!

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.
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Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities and amendments to HKFRS 7
Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application issues
relating to the offset of financial assets and financial liabilities
requirements. Specifically, the amendments clarify the meaning of
“currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off” and “simultaneous
realisation and settlement”.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to disclose
information about rights of offset and related arrangements (such as
collateral posting requirements) for financial instruments under an
enforceable master netting agreement or similar arrangement.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 are effective for the Group for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and interim
periods within those annual periods. The disclosures should also
be provided retrospectively for all comparative periods. However,
the amendments to HKAS 32 are not effective for the Group
until annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014, with
retrospective application required.

The directors anticipate that the application of these amendments
to HKAS 32 and HKFRS 7 may result in more disclosures being
made in the future.

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued, including
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)
and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five standards are described below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that deal with consolidated financial
statements. HK(SIC) — Int 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose
Entities will be withdrawn upon the effective date of HKFRS 10.
Under HKFRS 10, there is only one basis for consolidation, that is,
control. In addition, HKFRS 10 includes a new definition of control
that contains three elements: (a) power over an investee, (b)
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee, and (c) the ability to use its power over the investee to
affect the amount of the investor's returns. Extensive guidance has
been added in HKFRS 10 to deal with complex scenarios.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED 3L THRAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2012)

2.

(BZE2012F12A31HILFE)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS")
(CONTINUED)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (Continued)

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures. HKFRS 11
deals with how a joint arrangement of which two or more parties
have joint control should be classified. HK(SIC) — Int 13 Jointly
Controlled Entities — Non-monetary Contributions by Venturers
will be withdrawn upon the effective date of HKFRS 11. Under
HKFRS 11, joint arrangements are classified as joint operations
or joint ventures, depending on the rights and obligations of the
parties to the arrangements. In contrast, under HKAS 31, there are
three types of joint arrangements: jointly controlled entities, jointly
controlled assets and jointly controlled operations. In addition, joint
ventures under HKFRS 11 are required to be accounted for using
the equity method of accounting, whereas jointly controlled entities
under HKAS 31 can be accounted for using the equity method of
accounting or proportionate consolidation.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities that
have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and/
or unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 12 are more extensive than those in the
current standards.

In July 2012, the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 were issued to clarify certain transitional guidance on the
application of these five HKFRSs for the first time.

The directors anticipate that these five standards will be adopted
in the Group's consolidated financial statements for the annual
period beginning 1 January 2013. Based on the existing group
structure, the application of these five standards is not expected
to have impact on amounts reported in the consolidated financial
statements and the application of HKFRS 11 will not result in
changes in the accounting of the Group’s jointly controlled entities
that are currently accounted for using the equity method.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS")
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income introduce new terminology for the
statement of comprehensive income and income statement.
Under the amendments to HKAS 1, a ‘statement of comprehensive
income’ is renamed as a ‘statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income’. The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the
option to present profit or loss and other comprehensive income
in either a single statement or in two separate but consecutive
statements. The amendments to HKAS 1 also require items of
other comprehensive income to be grouped into two categories:
(a) items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss;
and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss when specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the same
basis — the amendments do not change the option to present items
of other comprehensive income either before tax or net of tax.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for the Group for annual
period beginning on1 January 2013. The presentation of items of
other comprehensive income will be modified accordingly when the
amendments are applied in future accounting periods.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED 3L THRAF

(For the year ended 31 December 2012) (#Z=2012F12A3181EFE)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
(its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as
to obtain benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition or up
to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with those
used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Distribution of non-cash assets to owners

A liability for dividend payable is recognised when an entity declares
a distribution and has an obligation to distribute the assets. The
liability to pay a dividend shall be recognised when the dividend is
appropriately authorised and is no longer at the discretion of the
entity. The Group measures a liability to distribute non-cash assets
as a dividend to its owner at net carrying amount of the assets to be
distributed when the non-cash asset is ultimately controlled by the
same parties both before and after the distribution.

Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of
a separate entity in which venturers have joint control over the
economic activity of the entity are referred to as a jointly controlled
entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of a jointly controlled entity
are incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in jointly controlled entities are initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the jointly controlled
entities. When the Group's share of losses of jointly controlled entity
equals or exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled entity (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group's net investment in the jointly controlled entity), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses
are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that
jointly controlled entity.
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Jointly controlled entities (Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect
to the Group's investment in a jointly controlled entity. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount
of the investment subsequently increases.

Upon disposal of a jointly controlled entity that results in the Group
losing joint control over that jointly controlled entity, any retained
investment is measured at fair value at that date and the fair value
is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition as a financial asset
in accordance with HKAS 39. The difference between the previous
carrying amount of the jointly controlled entity attributable to the
retained interest and its fair value is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the jointly controlled entity. In
addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that jointly controlled
entity on the same basis as would be required if that jointly
controlled entity had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that jointly controlled entity would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit
or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when it loses joint control
over that jointly controlled entity.

When a group entity transacts with its jointly controlled entity, profits
and losses resulting from the transactions with the jointly controlled
entity are recognised in the Group’ consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the jointly controlled entity that are
not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in
the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related
taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are
delivered and title has passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

«  the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods;

«  the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

«  the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED 3L THRAF

(For the year ended 31 December 2012) (#Z=2012F12A3181EFE)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

« itis probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

+  the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings held for use in
the production of goods or for administrative purposes (other than
construction in progress) are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment other than construction in progress
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

Properties, plant and machinery in the course of construction for
production or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and,
for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group's accounting policy. Such assets are classified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as leasee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
each element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are
allocated between the land and the building elements in proportion
to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of the
lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is released over the
lease term on a straight-line basis. When the lease payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and building elements, the
entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and accounted
for as property, plant and equipment.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives are
carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite
useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful lives and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains
or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are
measured at the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss
in the period when the asset is derecognised.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED 3L THRAF

(For the year ended 31 December 2012) (#Z=2012F12A3181EFE)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make
the sales.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF scheme”),
which are defined contribution plans, are recognised an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except for exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income, in which cases, the exchange differences
are also recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operation are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of the reporting. Income and expenses items are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under heading of translation
reserve.
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Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group's
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of joint control over a jointly controlled entity
that includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss. In addition,
in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not result
in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For
all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of jointly controlled
entities that do not result in the Group losing joint control), the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange differences is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Change in functional currency

Functional currency of a group entity is changed only if there is
a change to the underlying transactions, events and conditions
relevant to the entity. The effect of a change in the translation
functional currency is accounted for prospectively. At the date
of change, the entity translates all items into the new functional
currency using the prevailing exchange rate at that date and the
resulting translated amounts for non-monetary items are treated as
the historical cost. Exchange differences arising from the translation
of foreign operations recognised in translation reserve are not
recognised in profit or loss until the disposal of the operation.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED 3L THRAF

(For the year ended 31 December 2012) (#Z=2012F12A3181EFE)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as reported in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and interest
in a jointly controlled entity, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interest are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Current and
deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transaction

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve). Service and non-market
base performance conditions are not taken in account when
estimating the fair value at measurement date.

Instead, service and non-market base performance conditions are
taken in consideration to determine the number of share options
that are expected to ultimately vest.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates during the vesting
period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to share options reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
accumulated profits.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED 3L THRAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

N

(For the year ended 31 December 2012)

3.

e R R M EE

(BZE2012F12A31HIEFE)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the categories,
including loans and receivables and financial assets at FVTPL. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, loan to a jointly controlled entity,
amount due from a jointly controlled entity and bank balances
and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see accounting
policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Financial assets at fair value through profit loss

The Group's financial assets classified as financial assets at FVTPL
are derivatives that are not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes in
fair value arising from remeasurement recognised directly in profit
or loss in the periods in which they arise.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows have been affected.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

«  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

«  breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
and principal payments; or

« it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in
addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the credit
period ranged 7 to 60 days and observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest
rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all loans and receivables with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED 3L THRAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M EE

N

(For the year ended 31 December 2012) (EZE2012F12A318IEFE)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including
all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis other
than those financial liabilities at FVTPL, of which the interest expense
is included in net gains or losses.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

The Group's financial liabilities classified as financial liabilities at
FVTPL are derivatives that are not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes
in fair value arising on remeasurement recognised directly in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

Other financial liabilities
The Group's other financial liabilities mainly include trade and other
payables, amounts due to related companies and bank borrowings.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
to their fair value at the end of the reporting period. The resulting
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the
derivative is designated and effective as hedging instrument, in
which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends
on the nature of the hedge relationship.

Hedge accounting

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments for
cash flow hedges.

At the inception of the hedging relationship the entity documents
the relationship between the hedging instrument and hedged
item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy
for undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the
inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group
documents whether the hedging instrument that is used in a
hedging relationship is highly effective in offsetting changes in cash
flows of the hedged item.

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that
are designated and qualified as cash flow hedges are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in hedging reserve.
The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity (hedging reserve) are reclassified to
profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item is recognised
in profit or loss, in the same line of the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as the recognised hedged item.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the
hedging relationship, the hedging instrument expires or is sold,
terminated, exercised, or when it no longer qualified for hedge
accounting. Any gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in hedging reserve at that time remains
in equity and is recognised when the hedged risks are ultimately
recognised in profit or loss.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED 3L THRAF

(For the year ended 31 December 2012) (#Z=2012F12A3181EFE)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.
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In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make various estimates based on past experience and expectations
of the future and other information. The key sources of estimation
uncertainty that can significantly affect the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements
within the next financial year are disclosed below.

Impairment loss on trade receivables

The assessment of the impairment loss on trade receivables
of the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability and
aging analysis of accounts and on management's judgment. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness of each customer. If the financial conditions of the
Group's customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment
of their ability to make payments, additional allowances may be
required. Impairment is made based on the estimation of the
future cash flow discounted at the original effective rate to calculate
the present value. As at 31 December 2012, the carrying value
of trade receivables (net of impairment loss) was approximately
HK$15,302,000 (201 1: HK$36,373,000).

Write-down of inventories

Management reviews the inventories listing at the end of each
reporting period, and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-
moving inventory items identified that are no longer suitable for use
in operation. Estimation of net realisable value are based on the
most reliable evidence available at the time the estimates are made,
of the amount the inventories are expected to realise. Where the
net realisable value is less than the cost, a material write down may
arise. As at 31 December 2012, the carrying amount of inventories
(net of allowances) was approximately HK$76,253,000 (2011:
HK$95,620,000).

Income taxes

As at 31 December 2012, a deferred tax asset in relation to unused
tax losses of approximately HK$8,379,000 (201 1: approximately
HK$8,606,000) was not recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends
on whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences
will be available in the future. In cases where the expectation for
future profit streams changes, a recognition of deferred tax assets
may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period
in which such a recognition takes place.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED 3L THRAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R T

(For the year ended 31 December 2012)

(BZE2012F12A31HILFE)

5. REVENUE 5. KA
An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year is as follows: REEFARADTAT
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Manufacture and sales of chemical products s M HEL TEM 1,520,512 1,808,348
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. PEHEHE

(a) Operating segments

() R&EDI

(b)

Information reported to the Chairman of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM"), for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of goods sold.

The Group used to have two operating segments, namely, the
Handbag Business and the Chemical Business with segment
information being presented without allocating corporate
expenses and balances. Following the Spin-off, the CODM
regards the Chemical Business as the Group's sole operating
and reportable segment and reviews the Group's results and
financial position as a whole for the purpose of performance
measurement and resources allocation. Accordingly, no
segment analysis is presented for both years other than entity
wide disclosure.

Geographical information

The Group's operations from continuing operation are located
in the PRC.

The Group's revenue from continuing operation from external
customers and information about its non-current assets by
geographical location of the operations and assets respectively
are detailed below:

(b)

AASEETE  AXREEREKE
EHREHN HIBEAMEHHER
BELERD LD BRBAFE -

AEBEOKBEAMBELLNE - o
MBFREBRICTERS - 25
Z D EERLE D B KR4
B o RENIFIK - ARBETREE
REEME TR RSB ME—
Al E D BP - SARET E R PG
SULAYE B R 20 BL le 5P 0 BB R
B o At - ZMEFEARREL
BERBUEM D EBOMNT

AEERFBERERBUNTE -
AEBEFBELEEBRBINEEP

ZWARIZREEREI D 2 IERE)
BEHBOT

Revenue from

external customers

Non-current assets

REIIMBEF B A ERBES
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THT FHET FH&T
PRC F 1,469,726 1,795,854 1,657,184 1,201,024
The United States of America 3B 48,555 12,494 - —
Korea EZ Y 2,231 - - -
1,520,512 1,808,348 1,657,184 1,201,024
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(0

(d)

Revenue from major products

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue from its
major products:

Chloromethane products SRV &)
Caustic soda K
Hydrogen peroxide BAIK
Others At

Information about major customers

Revenue from sales to customer contributing over 10% of the
total sales of the Group is as follow:

Customer A BFA

! The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total sales
of the Group.
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SENTEERRADITAOT

2012
HK$'000
FTExT

576,684
663,532
113,579
166,717

1,520,512

d) EEBEFES

2011
HK$'000
THET

1,064,551
582,029
117,287

44,481

1,808,348

B A 7N £ B 48 S 5 8 1 000 1Y S & 5

o mEEERAWT

2012
HK3$'000
FiEx

N/A' i@ A

2011
HK$'000
TAT

240,128

! ERERATEBRBE B & HE R 10% °



LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED 3L THRAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
y= A

e M IE AR MY EE

(For the year ended 31 December 2012)

7.

(BZE2012F12A31HILFE)

OTHER INCOME 7. HfttlgA
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Bank interest income RITHEWA 64,378 25,889
Government grants (note) BT RE (Hrat) 34,980 16,011
Exchange gain B 5 M e 36,669 5,947
Others EHAth 8,603 7,451
144,630 55,298
note: The Group recognises these grants as other income upon receipt. Mt - EERW B Z SRR T LAARR ©
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 8. FieMXH
2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
The charge comprises: XHBE
Current tax: REATHIA
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") IR EFTISH 56,963 95,158
EIT credit (note) EMGHER (M) - (44,623)
Other jurisdictions Hith R A= 51 49
57,014 50,584

note: This represented EIT credit by the relevant tax authority calculated with reference
to amount of qualified property, plant and equipment that the Group sourced
within the PRC.

The Group's major business is in the PRC. Under the Law of the
PRC on EIT and its Implementation Regulation, the tax rate of the
PRC subsidiaries is 25%.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, Jiangsu
L&M (as defined in Note 35) is exempted from PRC income tax for
two years starting from 2008, followed by a 50% reduction for the
next three years. These tax holidays expire in 2012.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is made for both years since
there is no assessable profit for both years.
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The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before
taxation per the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
follows:
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FARBERAXEEE 2 RS R
BRI ES R T -

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Profit before taxation BRA A A
Continuing operation FEISEET 418,951 687,547
Discontinued operation BRI E TS - 57,603
418,951 725,150
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 25%  IZZANHIFT1SH R 25002 F1 18
(2011: 25%) (2011 : 25%) 104,738 181,288
Tax effect of expenses not deductible in 5B TE JE AR MR S AT 40 32
determining taxable profit R B 19,182 22,589
Tax effect of income not taxable in 5 TE & AR i | Oy B 2R B AR A
determining taxable profit WA Z TR 8 (7,914) (3,136)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERTIEE R MG E 57 533
Tax effect of offshore income not subject BETE R IWA
to tax X E - (5411)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not BAATARER ZHIEEE
recognised - (102)
Effect of tax holidays FEIME A RER R E .2
granted to a PRC subsidiary 7 (57,347) (95,586)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries Hth Al igmmfiRkEzR 2y
operating in other jurisdictions 2 (1,702) (692)
EIT credit BTG TE R - (44,623)
Income tax expense for the year FAFTEREH 57,014 54,860
Analysed as: DR
— continuing operation —FHEBKEER 57,014 50,584
— discontinued operation —BERIEREER - 4,276
57,014 54,860

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unutilised tax
losses of HK$8,379,000 (2011: HK$8,606,000) available to offset
against future profits. As at 31 December 2012, the tax losses of
HK$8,379,000 (2011: HK$8,606,000) from a PRC subsidiary will
expire at various dates up to and including 2017 (2011: 2016). No
deferred tax asset has been recognised on the tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED 3L THRAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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9.

e R R M EE

(For the year ended 31 December 2012) (EZE2012F12A318IEFE)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION 9. BRILEERNK
Upon the Spin-off, the Group discontinued its Handbag Business, ROk SERIFEFRER -
the results of which from 1 January 2011 to 22 June 2011 (date of 2011F1A1BZE2011F6A22B (D IF
Spin-off) were presented as a discontinued operation as follows: HERIEKEEK250T ¢
2011
HK$'000
FHET
Revenue YA 347,362
Cost of sales HEKA (250,621)
Gross profit E7 96,741
Other income H A 2,043
Selling and distribution costs SHE R SHA A (5,280)
General and administrative expenses 1T E A (40,604)
Listing expenses EMER (14,565)
Interest on bank borrowings wholly repayable FE T —
within five years RAFAZEEE ZIBITEK (732)
Profit before taxation BR A B A 57,603
Income tax expense PSR (4,276)
Profit for the period B A 53,327
Gain arising from reclassification of translation HEMDIRPTEL 2 B i
reserve upon distribution of specie 6,090
39,417
Profit for the period from discontinued BRI S E N5 A
operation included the following: 2R ¢
Directors’ emoluments E=HM 854
Other staff costs H A5 8 AR 98,122
Retirement benefit schemes contributions RKEAF IR (EERIN)

(excluding directors) 442
Total staff costs BIpAMEEE 99,418
Release of prepaid lease payments L TE N & IR 233
Auditors’ remuneration G 188
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses ERRB/ILNEFERAN (B

(including write-down of HK$771,000) FERER[E 771,000 7T 250,621
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BERREIINE 4,740
Exchange loss ME &8 1,941
Loss on fair value changes on derivative PTESRMIAMELR

financial instruments NHEZE 2 BB 494
and after crediting: N
Interest income FESA 31
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEMZE -« BE R #E R

equipment 17

During the period from 1 January 2011 to 22 June 2011, the
Handbag Group contributed cash inflow of HK$4,147,000 to the
Group's net operating cash flows, paid HK$2,205,000 in respect of
investing activities and paid HK$17,779,000 in respect of financing

activities.
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Continuing operation
Profit for the year has been arrived at after
charging:

Directors’ emoluments (note 13)

Other staff costs:

Salaries and other benefits
(excluding directors)

Retirement benefit schemes contributions
(excluding directors)

Total staff costs

Finance costs:

Interest on bank borrowings wholly repayable
within five years

Net adjustment on interest rate swaps
designated as cash flow hedges of floating
rate debt

Release of prepaid lease payments

Amortisation of intangible assets

Auditors’ remuneration

Cost of inventories recognised as expenses

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

FRECER%
FPEA IR

E=EMHE13)
EBE KA
e REMmER (EERIN

REMETBIHR(EERRSN)

8 TRAARER

BB R
MEXH-BEREFAZE
B8 2 RITHER

B2 B RESER S RET A S

EHA K BT

BHENEEHR

B A EEH

RN 2
ERAR/XHNFERA
ME - BEAREBEZIE
HEME - BER&EER
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2012
HK$°000
TET

38,651

52,765

3,907

95,323

33,962

4,084

38,046

929
1,196
1,714

998,257
110,823

16

2011
HK$'000
THAT

73,110

44,304

3,580

120,994

11,345

1,508

12,853

775
1,055
1,493

963,084
99,255

268



LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED 3L THRAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(For the year ended 31 December 2012)

11.

(BZE2012F12A31HILFE)

EARNINGS PER SHARE 11.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share from

=REH

SUEMEB RSNt E SR ER L #
SBANTHE T 5 BIBEE -

profit attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

2012 2011
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
From continuing and discontinued FERERBRLREER
operations
Eanings from continuing and discontinued R EGRERREER TN
operations for the purposes of basic and FECERCRIHEERER 2
diluted earnings per share B F 361,937 676,380
Number of ordinary shares for the purpose of AU EERERBNE LB
basic earnings per share 825,000,000 825,000,000
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: RECEEETE - BkE
Share options - 5,525,890
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for ARt E &R B R FR L ER
the purpose of diluted eamings per share I & 825,000,000 830,525,890
From continuing operation FEREEK
Earnings from continuing operation for the AR EEREARRFHFHE
purpose of basic and diluted earnings per BT 2 BF
share 361,937 636,963
Number of ordinary shares for the purpose of R ESRERB NN L BARE
basic earnings per share 825,000,000 825,000,000
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: TRREEH ST E - BivE
Share options - 5,525,890
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for  FLARHE &I EEE 27 A @A
the purpose of diluted eamings per share ik B2} 825,000,000 830,525,890

The presentation of diluted earnings per share for 2012 did not
assume the exercise of the Company's options because the exercise
price of those options was higher than the average market price for

shares in 2012.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, basic earnings per share
for the discontinued operation is HK 4.8 cents per share and diluted
earnings per share for the discontinued operation is HK 4.7 cents
per share, based on the profit for the year from the discontinued
operations of HK$39,417,000 and the denominators detailed
above for both basic and diluted earnings per share.
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2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Dividends recognised as distributions FAEERDIEZRE
during the year:
Final dividend of HK12 cents per share HZE2011F12A31H8IEFE
for the year ended 31 December 2011 NHARR BB 27811 99,000 =
Interim dividend of HK8 cents per share HE2012F 128310 LFE
for the year ended 31 December 2012 T B = AR sl 66,000 -
Final dividend of HK13 cents per share HZE2010F 128310 LFE
for the year ended 31 December 2010 REARR S ER1378 - 107,250
Interim dividend of HK17 cents per share HE2011F12A31HIEEE
for the year ended 31 December 2011 AR BRER 78 - 140,250
165,000 247,500

A final dividend of HK8 cents (2011: HK12 cents) per share
amounting to HK$66,000,000 (2011: HK$99,000,000) in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2012 has been proposed by the
directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders in annual
general meeting.

In addition to the above, during the year ended 31 December
2011, the Spin-off was effected by means of a distribution in specie
whereby the net assets of the Handbag Group on the date of the
Spin-off amounting to approximately HK$195 million was effectively
distributed to the Company’s shareholders on a pro rata basis.
Details of distribution are disclosed in Note 38.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2012) (EZE2012F12A318IEFE)

13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 7 (2011: 9)

directors were as follows:

13. EEB&E

EATSRER T76I(2011 - 9fL)EE 2 B

ST :

Other emoluments

Rftie

Contributions  Share-based
to performance

Salaries  retirement related Discretionary
and other benefit incentive bonus
benefits schemes IR#3%  payments
Fees HER BUEN  ERzHE Rt %A Total
ik EftER TR RRKE HE%S ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TERL TERL TERL TER
Year ended 31.12.2012 BEWNFNANALEFE
Executive directors HITEE
Wai Siu Kee Eom 960 1,200 - - 4,000 6,160
Lee Man Yan FYE 960 1,184 - 28,256 - 30,400
Yang Zuo Ning BIEE - 937 - - - 937
Wong Yuet Ming TA#H - 780 14 - - 794
Independent non-executive directors BV #5177E %
Wong Kai Tung, Tony TRE 120 - - - - 120
Wan Chi Keung, Aaron JP HR 120 - - - - 120
Heng Victor Ja Wei PR 120 - - - - 120
2,280 4,101 14 28,256 4,000 38,651

62



Annual Report 2012 F 3

13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) 13. EFEM&(=
Other emoluments
it
Share-based
Contributions  performance
Salaries  to retirement related  Discretionary
and other benefit incentive bonus
benefits schemes MRH A payments
Fees Fek RICEN  ERZIEE EfRHR Total
we EftEM TR FRRE BERe CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT
Year ended 31.12.2011 BE0NF12A31BLLEFE
Executive directors HITEE
Wai Siu Kee % 480 1,156 - - 6,000 7,636
Poon Lai Ming RER
(resigned on 27.6.2011) (BEIR20115F6A27R) - 34 2 - - 36
Lee Man Yan VA 480 1,320 6 62,370 - 64176
Kung Phong L]
(resigned on 27.6.2011) (BEIR201156A27R) - 256 6 - - 262
Yang Zuo Ning BiEE
(appointed on 27.6.2011) (ZfR201156A27R) - 1,136 - - - 1,136
Wong Yuet Ming 1AM
(appointed on 27.6.2011) (ZfER201156A27R) - 382 6 - - 388
Independent non-executive diectors BV A& TEE
Wong Kai Tung, Tony FRE 110 - - - - 110
Wan Chi Keung, Aaron JP FHR 110 - - - - 110
Heng Victor Ja Wei P 110 - - - - 110
1,290 4284 20 62,370 6,000 73,964

note: The share-based performance related incentive was determined in recognition

of the director’s outstanding performance in development and management
of the chemical products business which has contributed a significant growth

in the Group's profit and as an incentive for his continuing commitment and

contribution to the Group in future. Other performance related incentive

payments were determined with regards to individual performance. No directors

waived any emoluments in both years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(For the year ended 31 December 2012) (#(Z=2012F12A318ILFE)

14. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 14. EE#M&
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, EAREESUEEHMN 2 ALF - 2153
three (2011: three) were directors of the Company whose (2011 : 3R A RFRESE - HFME
emoluments are disclosed in note 13 above. The emoluments of N EXBHIEE13 o MES2(7 (2011 ¢
the remaining two (2011: two) individuals were as follows: 2067) 2 BHE AT

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Salaries and other benefits e M EMEF] 1,768 1,687
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes R {RIRFI5T 245K 10 6
1,778 1,693

The emoluments were within the following band: MEN T T EEE :
2012 2011
Number of Number of
employees employees
EEHE ==E24=
Nil to HK$1,000,000 # 21,000,000/ 7T 2 2
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. MK - BERE&RE
Furniture
fixturesand  Leasehold
equipment improvements Motor  Plantand Construction
Buildings  ff» £E g vehicles  machinery  in progress Total
B¥ FES I E 3 AE  HBEREE W ARIR At
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK§000 HK§ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TR TEL THETL TATL FhT i T
cost S
At 1 January 2011 R2011E1A1H 149,943 28781 18225 9238 1,145,706 113540 1465433
Exchange realignment i 2,283 97 4 138 50,559 3420 56,501
Additions AE - 1,664 - 1371 1,685 60,804 65524
Disposals e - (474) - (155) (766) = (1,395)
Derecognised upon Spin-off ~~ HHREBUERER (97051) (26973) (18,229) (7,047) (44,308) - (193,608)
Transfer B 620 364 - 46 175,774 (176,804) -
At 31 December 2011 R2011%128318 55,795 3459 - 3591 1328650 9%0 139245
Exchange realignment I 5 R 694 48 - 140 16,639 135 17,656
Additions hE - 1518 - 6,676 7463 304,185 319,842
Disposals e - (129) - - 31 - (160)
Transfer E4 75 - - - 4797 (4872) -
At 31 December 2012 R2012812A318 56,564 489 - 10407 1357518 300408 1729793
DEPRECIATION il
At 1 January 2011 201151418 63,697 21,898 11,665 7424 190411 - 295,095
Provided for the year AERR 4772 1,481 0 697 96,723 - 103,995
Exchange realignment ER% 260 53 1 55 8290 - 8,659
Elimination on disposal HERHH - (373) - (155) (332) - (860)
Derecognised upon Spin-off A {FEBUERER (610300 (21652  (11988) (6390)  (37909) - (138969)
At31 December 2011 20116128318 7,69 1,407 - 1,631 257,183 - 267920
Provided for the year AERRE 2529 609 - 968 106,717 - 110823
Exchange realignment ER% 127 23 - 29 4515 - 4,694
Elimination on disposal R - (109) - - (28) - (137)
At31 December 2012 20125128318 10,355 1930 - 2628 368,387 - 383,300
CARRYING VALUE KREE
At 31 December 2012 20124128318 46,209 2,966 - 7779 989,131 300408 1346493
At 31 December 2011 H011E12A31H 48,096 2052 - 1960 1071467 90 1,1245%

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line at the following rates per annum:

Buildings and leasehold improvements 5%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 25%
Plant and machinery (Handbag Business) 20%
Plant and machinery (Chemical Business) 5% — 20%

The carrying values of the Group's property interests comprises
buildings on land under medium-term land use rights in the PRC.
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17.

PAN
SR E S EL R
(For the year ended 31 December 2012) (HZ=2012F12A31HIEFE)
16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 16. RFHBAREA
The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise leasehold land in the AEEZENEEREREFREIE AN
PRC under medium-term lease. FREAARE i o
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
Analysed for reporting purposes as: 23|T
Non-current asset IEmENEE 63,291 45,454
Current asset MENEE 941 929
64,232 46,383
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. | EE
Technical
knowhow
Rl &0z
HK$'000
T
THE GROUP AEE
COST 5%
At 1 January 2011 R2011F1A1H 10,587
Addition NE 904
Currency realignment ER AR 471
At 31 December 2011 F2011F12A31H 11,962
Currency realignment ER AR 150
At 31 December 2012 M2012512A31H 12,112
AMORTISATION sy
At 1 January 2011 201141 A18 2,264
Provided for the year TN S 1,055
Currency realignment ER AR 200
At 31 December 2011 R2011F12A831H 3,519
Provided for the year AR S 1,196
Currency realignment E H R 60
At 31 December 2012 M2012412H31H 4,775
CARRYING VALUE BRTEE
At 31 December 2012 R2012%F12H31H 7,337
At 31 December 201 1 MR20114612H31H 8,443
The technical knowhow was acquired from third parties. It is FHEBRMABIBEE= «- AR+

amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of ten

years.
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Cost of unlisted investments in jointly

controlled entities ZIREKAR
Share of profit and other comprehensive JEAG B 2 E AR

income

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Group had interests in the
following jointly controlled entities:

Annual Report 2012 F 3

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THAT
24,177 4,545
870 389
25,047 4,934

20114 %2012 128318 + AEE
AT SRR 2 s ¢

Proportion of issued

Place of and fully paid up
establishment/ capital indirectly held
Name of jointly controlled entity incorporation by the Group Principal activities
rEBBEES
HEEZEFEREE BRI 3th B MERTRHBEZESLLH ETEXK
2012 2011
BARBEEEFR AT (Note i) PRC 40% 50% Provision of port facilities
(K15ti) & REHE DR
Southern Hill Company Limited (Note i) Hong Kong 50% 50% Investment holding
mAEBR AR (Hain) BB REFERR
notes: HiE
(i)  During the year, a deemed disposal of 10% of equity interest of the jointly O FR- ARRERFIM—BEERHIETE
controlled entity was resulted by the capital injection by existing joint venture — T EEYRMEHEHEEGIELE 2 10%
partners and the join-in of a new jointly venture partner. No gain or loss on IRAHE RS o W ARAERARME L & H A I E
deemed disposal of partial interest in jointly controlled entity was recognised Btz Wk EE - FE—2TEIK
as the Group's share of net asset value of the jointly controlled entity after the AEEREG LR EE 2 A EFERI0%R A
capital injection represented the Group's 40% of equity interest. Heas o
(i) On 28 June 2011, the Group entered into a joint venture agreement with Lee (i) M2011F6HA28H @ AEBEEEUEKER

& Man Paper Manufacturing Limited (“Lee & Man Paper”) which the ultimate
controlling party is also Mr. Lee Wan Keung, and Southern Hill Company Limited,
for the purpose of establishing a wholly foreign owned enterprise (“WFOE")
named I & B XY AR A AL The registered capital and costs and expenses
of the WFOE are borne by the Group and Lee & Man Paper Manufacturing
Limited on a pro-rata basis. Details of the agreement are disclosed in an
announcement of the Company dated 28 June 2011.
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19.

INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

(CONTINUED)

(BZE2012F12A31HILFE)

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
interest in the jointly controlled entities which is accounted for using

the equity method is set out below:

18. #FAEHRERZER(F)

ERAEERE KRR ER A
B SR TOAAR - BRI

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Current assets mMEEE 32,846 12,171
Non-current assets FEMBNEE 62,306 2,177
Current liabilities mEBE (5,715) (14)
Non-current liabilities FRBAE (64,390) (9,400)
Income recognised in profit or loss HERINBE R AR A - 16
Expenses recognised in profit or loss ERNBEEEXAS X (325) ©)
Other comprehensive income for the year FREMEERE 501 221
INVENTORIES 19. &8
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Raw materials and consumables R R AR G 44,811 56,784
Work in progress T Il o 7,048 8,809
Finished goods RURK o 24,394 30,027
76,253 95,620
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20. B 5 R EAMKRIE

2012 2011

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FH&TT

Trade receivables FEUE 5 BR R 15,302 36,373
Bills receivables e E2iE 60,467 207,417
75,769 243,790

Prepayment SEANE 28,546 24,551
Deposits to suppliers LY AEHE 32,733 12,603
Value-added tax receivables FEUIEB(ETE IR 19,128 =
Other receivables H b U IR 3,700 12,424
Other deposits Hibzl & 162 233
Total trade and other receivables JEWE 5 N B b3R8 160,038 293,601

The aged analysis of trade and bills receivables based on the invoice

U E S MEBERBARRERARRER

date at the end of the reporting period is as follows: HE 2 BREQIAT -
2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Less than 30 days DR30K 72,307 236,398
31-60 days 31E60K 2,665 7,392
61-90 days 61%290K 797 -
75,769 243,790

The following amounts of trade receivables, bills receivables and
other receivables are denominated in currencies other than the

functional currency of the relevant group entities.

ATREEZR  BEREREMER

IR LA KB RE & B (B 88 &Y T

B ©

BEE R IASN

2012 2011

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FAET

US dollars ETT - 7,392

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer's credit quality by investigating its historical
credit record and then defines its credit limit. Trade receivables that
are neither past due nor impaired are considered to be recovered

based on historical experience.
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

21.

The Group generally allows its trade customers a credit period
ranged from 7 to 60 days. During the years ended 31 December
2012 and 31 December 2011, no allowance for doubtful debts
was provided. The Group generally makes provision against debts
which are considered as not recoverable. At 31 December 2012,
trade receivables of approximately HK$797,000 (2011: Nil) was
past due. The Group does not hold any collateral over the overdue
balance.

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not
impaired:

20. BKRHREMKRIN(E)

AEEBSRTESRFZEEHR—R
NF7ZE60H - R2012F 128318 K
2011F12A31BFE » YEELRE
Bl AEB—RERAETERE
BIEEHIRBE - 2012912 A31H -
JEUE 5 BRRE B H4) £797,0007 7T
(20114 « &) - REEW EZZER
BB A Hg o

B 38 1A 0 A IRk 18 19 FB Wk B 5 7R0R AR ik 0
T:

2012 2011

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET T

61-90 days 61290K 797 -

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts WEERME S BB T

2012 2011

HK$°000 HK$'000

THET FHETT

Balance at beginning of the year FREER - 350
Amount written off as uncollectible A E - (123)
Disposal upon Spin-off DPHRENRE - (232)
Exchange realignment TEH AR - 5
Balance at end of the year AR - =

LOAN TO A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY/AMOUNT DUE
FROM A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY

The non-current loan to a jointly controlled entity represented
shareholder’s loan to Southern Hill Company Limited. As at 31
December 2012, the amount is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. As at 31 December 2011, the amount was
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. On both dates,
the directors did not expect the amount to be repaid within one year
after the end of the reporting period. The Group is denominated in
US dollars which is a currency other than functional currency of the
relevant group entity.

As at 31 December 2012, the amount to a jointly controlled entity

represented the loan due to E#AHREE % BFR A 7. The amount is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable in November 2013.
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Derivative financial assets
— net settlement

Derivatives not under
hedge accounting
Foreign currency forward

contracts (Note 1)

Derivative financial liabilities
— net settlement

Derivatives under
hedge accounting
Interest rate swaps (Note ii)

Derivatives not under
hedge accounting

Structured foreign currency
forward contract (Note Jii)

Interest rate swaps (Note iv)

The fair values of the derivative financial instruments are calculated

%ﬁié%ﬂﬁ?
/%%EI Elrr—

PTAETR (R
BEAR)
INEEBA K (it

o7 Eﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ
— R

RYHeETEAR
ZITETIER
FI=I 8 (frzti)

FETA(EFRE
AR

HEEHINERBAD
(fetin)

a8 (32

Current
B
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FA&TT

6,941 =

Annual Report 2012 F 3

Non-current

FERB

2012
HK$'000
TERT

(7,466)

(2,273)

(9,739)

2011
HK$'000
TAT

(2,963)

Q77)

(3,140)

TTEERMIAZAFENDRERRRS

using discounted cash flow analysis based on the applicable yield ME DT AR A B #Hth & &R BE
curves of interest rates and forward rates.

The derivative financial instruments are denominated in US and HK
dollars which are not the functional currency of the relevant group

entity.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2012)

22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

notes:

(0]

(i)

BRI

(BZE2012F12A31HILFE)

Foreign currency forward contracts - not under hedge accounting (i)

As at 31 December 2012, the amount represents the fair value of foreign
currency forward contracts held by the Group with terms stated as follows:

Notional amount Currency conversion
L ] BE¥RB

. TESRMTIAGE)
HiaE -

SMEEREH — FEDFEFET

M2012F 12 A31 B BEASEREG 2N
MR BANZ ATFERIGREFIAT

8 contracts to sell US$64,000,000 in total
817485 H164,000,0003 T4 4

US$1: RMB6.344 to 6.363
=1 AR¥6.344 0 6.363

The above contracts will mature within one to eight months from the end of the
reporting period. There is a fair value gain of HK$6,941,000 (2011: nil) during
the year.

Interest rate swaps - under hedging accounting (i)

The Group uses interest rate swaps to minimise its exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk of certain of its variable-rate US dollars and HK dollars bank
borrowings (see note 26) by swapping a proportion of the variable-rate bank
borrowings from variable interest rates to fixed interest rates. The interest rate
swaps and the corresponding bank borrowings have substantially the same
terms and the directors of the Company consider that the interest rate swaps
are highly effective hedging instruments. Major terms of the interest rate swaps
outstanding at 31 December 2012 are set out below:

Notional amount

e

Interest rate swap

GRS

EMAENERRESERIZSEARE - &R
#6582 FEF16,941,00087T(2011: F) o

FEEH - REPEFHET

AEERARREE - BBAGIHHFERT
EBERFEMNETRERETCHE  BHERE
BRI ZEETRABTRITERIEREZRE
MEMERR(RME26) ° %lﬂﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬂg
ZRITEERIBMHEBERGK - EFR

M= T E R BB 2 EH T A - E"zolzi
12 A31 BFI= Be) &= ZERESI AT -

1 contract with US$38,000,000

From LIBOR + 2% to fixed rate of 2.93%

11938,000,000E 7.4 4

1 contract with US$22,000,000
11922,000,000% T4 4

1 contract with US$15,000,000

11 15,000,000E L4 4

1 contract with HK$200,000,000
11%200,000,000/8 704 #)

Major terms of the interest rate swaps outstanding at 31 December 2011 are

set out below:

Notional amount

e

R BRI T RIS B+20088 AR F £.2.93%
From LIBOR to fixed rate of 1.68%
HRRBERTTRIZEF S BETE S 1.68%

From LIBOR + 1.75% to fixed rate of 2.83%

R BIRITRIZERF B+1.75%2 B = £ £.2.83%
From HIBOR to fixed rate of 0.8%

R AEBRITRZEN S HZETE S0.8%

T

Interest rate swap

GRS

1 contract with US$22,000,000
11922,000,000FE T4 4
1 contract with US$ 15,000,000
11915,000,000E T A #)

From LIBOR to fixed rate of 1.68%

AR BRITRER BB EE S1.68%

From LIBOR +1.75% to fixed rate of 2.83%

R BERITRIZER B+1.75%R B £ 5.2.83%

M20114F 12 A31 B R X EZKER

The above contracts will mature within two to four (201 1: three) years from the
end of the reporting period which match with the tenor of the corresponding
bank borrowings.
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22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

notes: (Continued)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

Interest rate swaps-under hedging accounting (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2012, net adjustment of HK$4,503,000
(2011: HK$2,963,000) was recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity and is expected to be released to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income at various dates in line with the interest
schedule of the corresponding bank borrowings in the coming two to four
(2011: three) years. A loss from fair value changes of HK$4,084,000 (2011:
HK$1,508,000) relating to interest incurred was recognised in profit or loss (note
10).

Structured foreign currency forward contract - not under hedge
accounting

At 31 December 2012, the notional amount of a structured foreign currency
forward contract amounted to US$5,000,000 with 24 valuation dates from 3
January 2013 to 3 December 2014 with settlement dates from 7 January 2013
to 5 December 2014. The expiry date of the contract is 3 December 2014.

On each of the 24 valuation dates, if the US$/RMB spot rate with reference to
Reuters page CNHFIXO1 as determined by a pre-agreed calculation agent (the
“Spot Rate") pursuant to the structured foreign currency forward contract, is
higher than a strike rate at US$1:RMB6.5 (the “Strike Rate”), the Group will be
obligated to sell the notional amount of US$5,000,000 at the Strike Rate and
thus the Group may suffer a loss. If the Sport Rate is less than the Strike Rate,
the Group will receive a pre-determined rebate amount of RMB144,000. There is
a fair value loss of HK$2,273,000 (2011: nil) during the year.

Interest rate swaps - not under hedge accounting

Major terms of an interest rate swap contract outstanding as at 31 December
2011 not under hedge accounting were as follows:

Notional amount

L F R = 1
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22. fTESMTAE)
Hx : (8)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

Interest rate swap

RREH - REHETET (&)

2012F 12 A31BE R + A F54,503,000
7L (20114 © 2,963,000/ 7C) ERE M2
AR EARER RN EST R EE - B
RARK _ZEMME(20114F : =F)E A HMRER
TEEZFRL M HRTR B FEELSLRE K
K -MEAFSEBZATEEHES
2 E5184,084,000/ 7T.(20114F : 1,508,0007%
TO)ERBEA T RERE A S (HFE10) ©

EBMNEEHEN - FHHEET

M2012F12A31H  B2013F1A3H8%
2014%F 12 A3 A 124 EKBERET © BB MEN
¥R ERA #0222 & FE A 85,000,000 T
HHEBEHA2013F1 A7TBE2014F12 A5
B - A4#51K2014F 12 B3B8 Em °

RE24EMMER - RIBEBEINERBHE
4 WETHAREBBELEREZAERE
2 BB 1% +t B M (Reuters page) CNHFIXO1
ER([REER])  aRTEER([{TEE
R|)ETHAREL : 65 NEBEE AT
i R 1 & # 2 & %85,000,000% 7T+ F it
ANEBARLETEK - WIREERERITE
R AEEBKRELEERASEAR
¥144,0007T - RAFE - EXEATEEE
2,273,000/7(2011 : &) ©

R — FEOFEFET

M20115F12A31 A3EEHEE T2 —HFIE
BEHALNEBEROT

1 contract with US$38,000,000
11938,000,000% T4 #)

The above contract would mature within three years from 31 December 2011.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, it became qualified for hedge
accounting and is included in Note 22(ii).
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23.

24.

BB ERR M

(BZE2012F12A31HILFE)
BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and short
term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.
The deposits carry prevailing market interest rates which range from
0.35% to 5.80% (2011: 0.50% to 5.80%) per annum.

The following amounts of bank and cash are denominated in the
foreign currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant
group entities.

23.

BITERREAS

RITERLREBEAEEFE2EE
MR A3ME A kA 31E A BIH 2 HA
RITHER - ZEGFREMSFHFEE
9+3§50/o§:5.800/0(201 1:0.50%%5.80%)
ale ©

ATRITMR S BRI UEBEEER
ZNREEB AN EHE TR o

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&TT
HK dollars BT 3,248 3,151
US dollars ETT 82,838 134,000
86,086 137,151

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24. EfEAREMBRIE

Trade and other payables principally comprise amounts outstanding
for trade purchases and ongoing costs. The credit period obtained
for trade purchases is 7 to 45 days.

Included in trade and other payables is trade payable of
HK$43,970,000 (2011: HK$56,306,000). The aged analysis of
trade payable based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting
period is as follows:

BNBESNEMKRBTITEBREEZES
FEFEBRSKAZANRIE - EFEE
ZFHRERER AT E45K ©

EBRNESREMABEIEREMNERR
N Z ¥ 49 43,970,000 7 7T (2011 :
56,306,000/87T) * ETERFNAIME R
WHRZRZEREOITIT

2012 2011

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Less than 30 days DRZ0KR 32,286 44,243
31-60 days 31260K 2,374 3,473
61-90 days 61290k 2,534 1,120
Over 90 days 90K 6,776 7,470
43,970 56,306

Receipt in advance TRWR 26,472 59,167
Construction payable FEfT T 24,926 23,819
Value-added tax accruals FERIGETIE 21,559 5,026
Other payables EAb R 9,267 20,980
Other accruals HibiEiRE R 25,831 24,936
Total trade and other payables JERIE 5 R B At RIB S 5T 152,025 190,234

The following amounts of trade and other payables are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the
relevant group entities.

VAT FE A58 55 BR R S EL b R IR 1 LA AR 28
SEEBHINEEEB AN B

2012 2011

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET T

HK dollars BT 99 61
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25. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES 25. FEMRELTREK
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Lee & Man Paper BE A 6,989 201
Lee & Man Paper is beneficially owned and controlled by Mr. Lee BXEHRRTBHERARAKKERRA]
Wan Keung, the controlling shareholder of the Company's ultimate Fortune Star,Z 15 A& AR 3R 2258 @if‘ﬁ B

26.

holding company, Fortune Star.

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing, repayable on

demand and aged within 90 days.

wE -

BRRAQEER - T5HE TR
B8 R ARER BOOKRMA °

i

BANK BORROWINGS 26. S|ITHEMK
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
Unsecured bank loans EIKRIRI TR 1,416,956 960,257
Unsecured bank import loans EHEARITADERERK - 6,491
1,416,956 966,748
Carrying amount repayable: HIEEREE :
Within one year —F R 180,130 159,007
More than one year, but not BE—FETBE =F
exceeding two years 486,038 180,130
More than two years but not BE—FE BEAF
more than five years 712,092 566,470
1,378,260 905,607
Carrying amount of bank loans that are MRBEPRER—FAEER
repayable within one year from the BB AIBER 2RERGR 2
end of the reporting period and contain RITERREE
a repayment on demand clause 16,320 22,431
Carrying amount of bank loans that are REIERREHA—FANER
not repayable within one year from 1B B AT BB 2SRER RS2
the end of the reporting period but RITIEFEREE
contain a repayment on demand (RREBBETIIR)
clause (shown under current liabilities) 22,376 38,710
1,416,956 966,748
Less: Amounts due within one year B —FEREIER S ER
shown under current liabilities RBBEETIIR (218,826) (220,148)
Amounts shown under non-current RIERBEE IR
liabilities 1,198,130 746,600
As at 31 December 2012, the Group had available banking facilities MR2012F 124318 » A& EA A

of approximately HK$2,718,105,000 (2011: HK$1,337,846,000)

of which HK$1,416,956,000 (2011:
utilised.

HK$966,748,000) was
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R 77 % F {= & %8 #92,718,105,000
7t (2011 : 1,337,846,000 i 7T ) -
/1 1,416,956,000 #& 7T ( 2011

2
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H
966,748,000/ 7T) E BN A o
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26. BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

The exposure of the Group’s fixed-rate borrowings and the
contractual maturity dates are as follows:

26. SRITHE(E)

AEBEZEEMEERREQOFBHBN
T

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET T
Fixed-rate borrowings: & TE MR B

In more than one year but not more Y —FETHBE—F
than two years 80,000 -

In more than two years but not more BE—FETBERAS
than five years 120,000 -
200,000 =

At the end of the reporting period, all of the Group's remaining
borrowings carried variable-rate interest.

The ranges of effective interest rates per annum on the Group's
borrowings are as follows:

RBERR - KEMEHTRITERY

FiFE 8 o

AEEERCERFRRBENOT

2012 2011

Effective interest rate:

Variable-rate borrowings

Fixed-rate borrowings

BRI

FBRIE(ER

[E] 7€ ) R A& 5K

The following amounts of bank borrowings are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant group

1.6% to 3%
over HIBOR
or LIBOR
EBRIT
EE$/3-
RMEERT
EE$7-
2.83to £
3.68%

1.6% to 3%
over HIBOR
or LIBOR
EBRIT
RIZFE
SR BERTT
EIZEHFE
N/A

T

REBBREAERERINGEEEIEI

ZRITEREFMT -

entities.
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
US dollars ETT 966,956 656,748
HK dollars BT 450,000 310,000
1,416,956 966,748
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Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each: FREE B TR

Authorised: SEE

At 1 January 2011, 31 December 2011

and 31 December 2012 20124 12A31H

Issued and fully paid: BITRER
At 1 January 2011, 31 December 2011

and 31 December 2012 20124 12A31H

There was no movement in the Company's share capital for both
years.

The Company's share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed on 14 December 2001 for the
purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible persons.
The Scheme had a term of 10 years from its adoption and therefore
it expired on 13 December 2010. The share options granted had a
market value of HK$163,430,000 and the provision of the Scheme
shall remain in full force and the holder of all options granted under
the Scheme prior to such termination shall be entitled to exercise
the outstanding options pursuant to the terms of the Scheme until
expiry of the said options.

Under the Scheme, the Company's board of directors could at their
discretion grant options to (i) any director, employee or consultant
of the Company or a company in which the Company holds an
equity interest or a subsidiary of such company (“Affiliate”); or (ii)
any discretionary trust whose discretionary objects include any
director, employee or consultant of the Company or an Affiliate;
or (iii) a company beneficially owned by any director, employee
or consultant of the Company or an Affiliate; or (iv) any customer,
supplier or adviser as may be determined by the directors of the
Company from time to time to subscribe for the shares of the
Company.
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P2011E181H - 20111284318 K&

P2011E1818 - 20111284318 K&

Number of
ordinary
shares Amount
LZEBRNEE ¢
HK$'000
FET
5,000,000,000 500,000
825,000,000 82,500

AR ZBARZMEFERAL TS

RATIRE—BN20015F12 81488
BZRBR - DERMBRRES S (5
) LNREEERAEAL - 53
HEMBIOFAAB K - WHKR20104F
12R138E®R - ERLWERETER
163,430,000/ 7T S 12 9 5T 81D A 4
W AT A B MBS E R A A BRI
SRR AR ST 82 B B R AR AT
BREITEIERAEIRE -

RiEFE  ARAEFS([EFE )
BMEROAEE  AEBEEESRAEDS
ZARMEZARZMEAR([HER
ADZEMES - EEREM - R[iHF
DABRARENEBB AR ZEME
= - BRESER ZER2EERT  2(ii)
HARESEBRBRRZENES - &
BEH BEafEEZRm (vHE
FENTEREZEAER - =X
BRI TREREARBEARR R
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28.

(BZE2012F12A31HILFE)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the date of
grant. The maximum number of shares of the Company in respect
of which options might be granted under the Scheme was not
to exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company any
point in time. The maximum number of shares of the Company in
respect of which options might be granted to any individual in any
12-month period was not to exceed 1% of shares of the Company
in issue on the last date of such 12-month period unless approval
of the shareholders of the Company was obtained in accordance
with the Listing Rules.

Options could be exercised during such period (including the
minimum period, if any, for which an option must be held before it
could be exercised) as determined by the directors of the Company
(which shall be less than ten years from the date of issue of the
relevant option). Options could be granted without initial payment.
The exercise price was equal to the highest of (i) nominal value of
the shares of the Company; (ii) the closing price per share as stated
in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets on the date of the
grant of the options; and (iii) the average closing price per share as
stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the grant of the
options.

28. MERxiERtEI(E)

BR T 2 BN ANER AR 21R
MR o BRRIRET ST B 2 B IkE
PRk ZBMER  EEARERST
BHEBARRDBEITRAZ10% ° BRI
RIBELMRANESAARRRLE &
BIRMERN1218 B HIRER FERMER A L
ZEBREZRSRMNEE - TREBR
128 AR 2 &1& — BB #TRG

1% °

BRETRESSET <A BHRZH
A ETABBRELE106R - I
BIEBRAER TITENLARE Z&E
HARR (208 ) ) T TIE - BB R AL B/ 1E
BN R Z BER TR - AR
SRR ZEBEERITEERO KD

A (BRI EREE BB AT
FHRERM 2 BBUHE - Rk
N ERER B BIRTS (B 5 B R X AT
2B AHMERMT 2 FEHERKTHE -

The following table discloses movements of the Company's share BE2012F12A31HIEFE - AR F]
options during the year ended 31 December, 2012: BREZFHZ25)0T -
Number of share options
BREHA
Granted/ Granted/
exercised/ exercised/
lapsed/ lapsed/
Outstanding cancelled/  Outstanding cancelled  Outstanding
Exercise at during at during at
Director Date of grant price Exercisable period 1.1.2011 the year 1.1.2012 the year 31.12.2012
R2011% R R2012% R R2012%
181 BE/f1E/ 181 BE/f1E/ 12A318
£ R AH fIRE 768 LR B, BUE PR B,/ BUE PR
HKS
BT
Lee Man Yan 2342010 6.69 23.42011-22.42015 27,500,000 = 27,500,000 = 27,500,000
&3¢ 23.42010 6.69 23.42012-22.4.2015 27,500,000 = 27,500,000 = 27,500,000
2342010 6.69 23.42013-22.42015 27,500,000 - 27,500,000 - 27,500,000
Total FaEy 82,500,000 = 82,500,000 = 82,500,000
Exercisable at the RERA{TE
end of the year RRHEE 27,500,000 55,000,000
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The options granted on 23 April 2010 may be exercised in
accordance with the following terms:

®

(ii)

iir)

(iv)

up to one-third of the options (i.e. options for an aggregate of
27,500,000 shares) will be exercisable from 23 April 2011 to
22 April 2015 (both dates inclusive) if the consolidated net
profit after taxation of the Group (“Net Profit") for the financial
year ended 31 December 2010 equals or exceeds 115% of
the Net Profit for the financial year ended 31 December 2009;

up to two-thirds of the options (i.e. options for an aggregate
of 55,000,000 shares) will be exercisable from 23 April 2012
to 22 April 2015 (both dates inclusive) if the Net Profit for the
financial year ended 31 December 2011 equals or exceeds
130% of the Net Profit for the financial year ended 31
December 2009;

all of the options (i.e. options for an aggregate of 82,500,000
shares) will be exercisable from 23 April 2013 to 22 April
2015 (both dates inclusive) if the Net Profit for the financial
year ended 31 December 2012 equals or exceeds 145% of
the Net Profit for the financial year ended 31 December 2009;

to the extent any options have not become exercisable by
23 April 2014 (i.e. options for an aggregate of 82,500,000
shares), they will be exercisable from 23 April 2014 to 22 April
2015 (both dates inclusive) if the Net Profit for the financial
year ending 31 December 2013 equals or exceeds 160% of
the Net Profit for the financial year ended 31 December 20009.

The option shall lapse if the options holder by reason of voluntary
resignation or by termination of his employment in accordance with
the termination provisions of his contract of employment.

At 31 December 2012, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
Scheme represented 10% (2011: 10%) of the issued share capital
at that date.
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R2010F4 A23 BI% L R RTARIE AT
BERSRERT B 2 ISR T1E

@

(ii)

(ii)

(iv)

WEZE2010F12 31 B IEBBAF
&2 FF BREERKBEEE2009
F12A31 8 LW ERFE 2% HE
115% @ Blsx % =5 2 — /R iE
(BN &5t #£27,500,0000% B A% 4 ) %
AIA201 144 A23HE2015F4 A
2B (BREEEMAR)ATTE

MEAE2011E12 831 B It B 4E
B2 5 BAER KB BEEE2009
F1NAALETBEE 2 FFE
130% @ Bl Z =5 2 — W AR
(BN 2 5155,000,000 % B8 A% 42 ) 35 7]
PR2012F4 823HE2015F4 22
B(BEEEMRX)ATTE

WEHZE2012F12 A31 B IEBBF
&2 FFBEBEERKBIEEZ2009
FNAINALEMREEZFHE
14500 + Bl 2 SEAE A% #E (BN 25 &
82,500,000/% FE A% # ) #% A1 722013
F4H238E2015F4 8228 (84
BREMAR)RITE

& £ R E (B R H
82,500,000 i fig Ix # ) H £ 2014
FAR23HWARREEBITERE - 0
HZE2013F12 A3 1B LT BFE
ZFH)E AR S A sk B B H = 2009
F1AVALEMRFE 2 FHE
160% * A= ZPEE AR A% AT 1A 2014
F4R238 52015548228 (84
BREMK)RITE

fHfE AR A A B AR R B H (B

()

W RIEIRSURAR LR - BB

HERRK o

MR2012F 128318 » B KREER
R HE R MEFTE T W ATTERRK
109%(2011: 100%)fE 1t B #iE BTN -
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(For the year ended 31 December 2012) (#Z=2012F12A3181EFE)

The total fair value of the share options granted under the Scheme
on 23 April 2010 is approximately HK$163,430,000, calculated
using the Binomial Model (the “Model"). The inputs into the Model
and the estimated fair value of the share options are as follows:

R2010F4 A23B iR R EARE 2 A F
{E1E A% 163,430,000/ 7T » & — 1A
AR (R ) ETE - BRRNE KER
2T RATEEZMT

Share options Share options Share options

with an with an with an

exercisable exercisable exercisable

period from  period from  period from

BREz BRE BREZ

fTEEHm fTEEHm fTERm

23.4.2011 23.4.2012 23.4.2013

toz toz toz

22.4.2015 22.4.2015 22.4.2015

Share price at date of grant REHBHZRE HK$6.69 HK$6.69 HK$6.69
Exercise price 111E(E HK$6.69 HK$6.69 HK$6.69
Expected volatility FEER IR 53.62% 53.62% 53.62%
perannum&4  per annumBE4E  per annum&

Expected life of share options IR TR HR A R 5 yearstF 5 yearstF 5 yearstF
Expected dividend yield FEEMR S 4.75% 4.75% 4.75%
Risk-free rate ERBREHE 2.03% 2.03% 2.03%
Fair value of share option Bz N HEE HK$1.78 HK$2.02 HK$2.15

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility
of share price over the previous five years. The expected life used
in the Model has been adjusted, based on management's best
estimate, for the effects of non transferability, exercise restrictions
and behavioural considerations.

The risk free interest rate was estimated based on the yield of the
5-year exchange fund note issued by the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority as of the grant date.

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of
the share options are based on the directors’ best estimate. The
value of an option varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions.

Share option expense of approximately HK$28,256,000 (2011:
HK$62,370,000) was recognised in the general and administrative
expenses in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2012, calculated with reference
to the vesting period.
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EREREREMGRE -

BERRANXREEEMEERZOFH
SNEESEF RN H BB -

BYRER AT BB AT EE
TREER S - BREEESEH
BRI TRASEMEE

BE I A 7 4928,256,000% 7T (2011 -
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29. OPERATING LEASES
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9. EEHY

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Minimum lease payments paid under FABBRAEYHLERL
operating leases in respect of office premises 7 HIKBAE
during the year 155 127

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases in respect of office premises and machinery HK$2,131,000
(2011: HK$72,000) which fall due as follows:

IR ISR - 72 B &GS N Al H B B0 i
DREMERME 72 AR EBE KR
52,131,000/ 7 (2011 : 72,0008 7T)
HEEER ¢

2012 2011

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT FHET

Within one year —FA 2,042 72
In the second to fifth years inclusive RE_ZERAFA 89 =
2,131 72

Included in the commitments above, the following is related to
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases with Lee & Man Paper (note 33).

£ bt AGErR - LA B3R SOEMRETE] 3
TR RUEEE LA 2 R RREHEE =X
EEAa R (KIFE33) -

2012 2011

HK$°000 HK$'000

THET FHET

Within one year —FR 90 -
In the second to fifth year inclusive RE_ZFRFA 89 -
179 =

The commitments for operating lease payments represent rentals
payable by the Group for office properties. Leases are negotiated for
an average term of two years (2011: one year). Rentals are based
on the terms specified in the lease agreements.
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30.

31.

32.

OTHER COMMITMENT

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future consultancy fee payments under non-cancellable contracts
which fall due as follows:

. Hftikig

R|BERR - NEEAFET A HEER R
KEREBEXHAL  HEHBWT :

2012 2011

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Within one year —F R 180 180
In the second to fifth year inclusive NE_ZERFNRN 270 450
450 630

In addition, at the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contractual commitments for acquisition of land use rights of
HK$33,400,000 (201 1: HK$55,642,000). It also had commitments
for granting shareholder’s loan of HK$60,410,000 (2011:
HK$37,400,000) to a jointly controlled entity.

o - REEBK - SEEFT AN
33,400,000 7t (2011 : 55,642,000
BT BA TR A o BITAEAGELS T
60,410,000/7t(2011 : 37,400,000/
TR ER T HERIESIEEE -

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS . BFEiE
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Capital expenditure contracted for but not BRI 4B R GRS B S Rk
provided in the consolidated financial BB EARM W
statements in respect of:
— the acquisition of property, plant —BEWE  BEKRRK
and equipment 423,558 150,663

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES
Defined contribution scheme

The Group operates the Mandatory Provided Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group, in
funds under the control of trustees. The Group contributes monthly
the lower of HK$1,000 (HK$1,250 starting from 1 June 2012) or
5% of the relevant monthly payroll costs to the MPF Scheme, which
contribution is matched by employees.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members
of state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the
government of the PRC. The PRC subsidiaries are required to
contribute certain percentage of payroll costs to the retirement
benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to make
the specified contributions.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$3,921,000 (2011:

HK$3,600,000) represents contributions payable to these schemes
by the Group in respect of the current accounting period.
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SEHRRETE

AEBERMAREBRNEERT —AR
EeEtE - RESHECEERASE
ZEESHAFER  WHIZFTAES -
AEBRETES T84 51,000 7T &
1,250/t (H2012566 A1 BB ) A
B9 A H AN 2 50 (ABE & AXE) -
miE 8 2 L RAFE o

AEEPEMBARZEEH ATE
BREE 2 BERABHNTE 2KE
%L BN B A B B S 2 5T
B2 AR AR A G B - NS B
BRERKBHFEIZETRFREEZ

K -

REAEERN - AEEEELAEFH
JE S 258 53,921,000 7T (2011
3,600,000/87T) ' B BAEEE=T T
/E\.E °



The Group had significant transactions and balances with related
parties (see notes 21 and 25) during the year and at the end of the
reporting period as follows:

Name of related party
BED A8

Connected parties
BEAL

* Capital Nation
Investment Limited

*Lee & Man Realty
Investment Limited

BXEXARRAR

Lee & Man Paper
AR

Lee & Man Management

Relationship
B&

A company beneficially owned
and controlled by Ms. Lee
Man Lai

HENERTERER
Nzl z R A

A company beneficially
owned and controlled by
Mr. Lee Man Yan and
Mr. Lee Wan Keung

HEXREERFTEREE
BEmEA ME 2 AF]

A company beneficially
owned and controlled by
Mr. Lee Wan Keung

HEERTEESER
N AEH 2 A7)

A company beneficially

e

Nature of transactions

RZME

Corrugated cardboard and
carton boxes purchased

BB RS AR M aRAs

Licence fee paid

EfEREE

Electricity and steam fee paid
ENEERERE

Fuel expense paid

EANFAY SRS

Rental expense paid
BENEE

Sales of chemical products
HE(L TEmM

Management consultant

Company Limited owned and controlled by fee paid
BXEBERAA Mr. Lee Wan Keung ENEREMRE
HFEREEERER
Rzl 2 A A
< These transactions are related to the Handbag Business prior to the Spin-off. o

Except for the related party transactions and balances described
above, the Group has entered into a joint venture arrangement
with Lee & Man Paper. Details of the joint venture and the other
commitment to the jointly controlled entity are set out in notes 21

and 30 respectively.
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2012
HK$000
TR

73,340
425
1,553

4,760

16

B EXFTatBEE A TR 5 RAERID
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= g

H =

REBEREALTNFRAMETZEX
R 5 RN ERRZ AR (FFE21 %25)

2011
HK$'000
TAT

1,411

778

71,698
456
888

6,947

ERRZZRAFRIBN FRER ©

N
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mE RS ER AR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2012) (#(Z=2012F12A318ILFE)

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 33. BEXSRER(Z)

(CONTINUED)
The remuneration of directors and other members of key BERHEMFEEIRERERNER B
management during the year was as follows: T
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THETT
Short-term employee benefits REAB TR 14,175 13,988
Post-employment benefits RIREH 24 28
Share-based payment performance AR R EERE 2 B RIS
related incentive 28,256 62,370
42,455 76,386
34. NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 34. FRWHRS
During the year, purchases of property, plant and equipment of FAN-EBENE BERIEEER
HK$240,751,000 (2011: HK$54,897,000), respectively, were 240,751,000/ 7C(20114F : 54,897,000
settled through transfer of deposits paid. BIT)RBTFENENFTSEA -
On 22 June 2011, the Spin-off of the Handbag Group was effected )5/\201 166 228 * AARIBHFREER
by way of distribution of the Handbag Business amounting to D WRHHIRARR R Z RE DKL
approximately HK$195 million to the Company's shareholders on 1.958H7T o

pro rata basis.
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35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries at 31 December

Annual Report 2012 F 3

35. FEMBELT

R2011EK2012F12A31BARGEZ

2012 and 2011 are as follows: FTEWBRRFENAT :
Nominal value of issued
Place of and fully paid share Attributable
Name of subsidiary incorporation capital/paid-in capital equity interest Principal activities*
BRTRBERFEE/
WELRERE TR BARE Frit s TEEY
2012 2011

Lee & Man Chemical Investment British Virgin Islands ~ Shares — US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding

Limited (formerly known as EBRLHES RiA-1%7 RERR

Lee & Man Chemical Limited)
B TREARAT

(3118 B IARAR)
Lee & Man (International) Hong Kong Ordinary shares — HK$100 100% 100%  Investment holding

Investment Limited BB LERID- 1008 T REER
BX (AR RERRAT
Jiangsu Lee & Man Chemical Limited ~ PRC Paid-in capital - 100% 100%  Manufacture and sales of

("Jiangsu L&M") (note) F US$78,750,000 chloromethane products and
TEE X TAERAR(DIEEN ) BARA- caustic soda

(#i2) 78,750,000% 7T HERFEFRAY - B

JS¢cER gl

Guangdong Lee & Man Chemical R&D  PRC Paid-in capital - 100% 100%  Research and development of

Limited (note) F US$2,020,000 chemical products
ERECIHEERRAR (Hit) BRI~ 2,020000%TT et IEm
Jiangxi Lee & Man Chemical Limited ~ PRC Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Under construction

(note) 0 US852,500,000 E e
IBEXCTARAR (Hit) EARA- 52,500000% T
High Sky Chemicals Limited Labuan, Malaysia ~ Ordinary share — US$10,000 100% 100%  Trading

MBS BREE  EER) - 100001 g5

& The principal activities were carried out in the PRC, Hong Kong and overseas
countries.

note: These companies are registered in the form of wholly-owned foreign investment
enterprise.

Only Lee & Man Chemical Investment Limited was directly held by
the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the
end of the year, or at any time during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(For the year ended 31 December 2012) (EZE2012F12A318IEFE)

36. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure the entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged

from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the bank loans disclosed in note 26, net of bank balances
and cash, and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and various reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues

as well as issue of new debts.
37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

37a. Categories of financial instruments

36. BXEEEE

REBETERNER - AERAEE A
TRERLAFELLES  ARES
BALER RS R T B B Hz K
- ARENERRES LFERFT

=4

AEBNENEHEEF 8 E(FREN
FE26FF EMRIRTTE R MR SR AVIRTT
fEF) A AR DT A ARGER(ES
BEETRARSIAME) °

ARPMEEREBEEERHELRE -
ERRHEEHNNID EFEEEEEL
RAREFERNABERR - REES
MR ARERERRMNEE - BT
FRA R BT EA T E L BB E AL
&

37. &@TH
37a. BT E 2R

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Financial assets THEE
Loans and receivables (including ERFENFE(BEReRRE
cash and cash equivalents) £EER) 1,670,289 1,498,955
Fair value through profit or loss ANHEFABR
— derivative financial instruments —{TESRMTHE 6,941 =
Financial liabilities THEE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost bicg: 5 DN =L 1,502,108 1,061,396
Fair value through profit or loss AN FHESARR -
— derivative financial instruments —TEERmTHE 2,273 177
— derivatives under hedge accounting — IR ETDENITASR T A 7,466 2,963

37b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, loans to jointly controlled entities, amount
due from a jointly controlled entity, bank balances and cash,
trade and other payables, bank borrowings, amounts due to
related companies and derivative financial instruments. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented

on a timely and effective manner.

37b. YRR EE B EREE

AEEZTIESRTAREREE
HREMKE HAZHEERE
R RITESREES  BHESR
Hi5RIE - RITER - BNEE
REFEREBITETR - %ZFS
BT EAFBRAEMNERE - &%
TRt TAMMBERRERSEM SRR
(BR®RRENEERR) EERR
ERBEZRE o T HZEF
TRt TEAA R E R LA PR EZ
FRBRHER  EEBEENMEE
Z R - ARECR N B N A R iR
BUEE 2 f51E ©
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37b. B AR EEBERBEK(E)

37b.Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Market risk mE RS
() Currency risk () EEREE

The Group mainly operated in the PRC and the exposure
in exchange rate risks mainly arose from fluctuations of
foreign currencies, including HK dollars and US dollars
against the functional currency of the relevant group
entities. Material transactions and balances that are not
denominated in the functional currency of the relevant
entities give rise to foreign currency exposure as follows:

(i) US dollars — in terms of loan to a jointly controlled
entity, amount due from a jointly controlled
entity, bank balances and cash, trade and other
receivables bank borrowings and derivative financial
instruments.

(i)  HK dollars — in terms of bank balances and cash,
trade and other payables, bank borrowings and
derivative financial instruments.

Exchange rate fluctuations and market trend have
always been the concern of the Group. Management
will monitor the foreign currency exposure closely and
consider the use of hedging instruments when the need
arises.

Non-derivative foreign currency monetary assets and
monetary liabilities

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amount
of the Group's monetary assets and monetary liabilities
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the relevant group entities are as follows:

Assets BE
HK dollars BIT
US dollars eI
Liabilities aE
HK dollars BIT
US dollars eI
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AR — [\ B EE R B e Th
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JERB A ERRAY AT A -
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]
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MERNEERTENZ EHE
tREERSRAS  HEM®
(EVONNE

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THAT
3,248 3,151
147,228 141,392
450,099 310,061
966,956 656,758
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(For the year ended 31 December 2012)

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

37b.Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)

(BZE2012F12A31HILFE)

Non-derivative foreign currency monetary assets and
monetary liabilities (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5%
appreciation and depreciation in the functional currency
of the relevant group entities (i.e. RMB and HK dollars)
against the above foreign currencies. 5% is the sensitivity
rate and represents management's assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis adjusts their translation at the
period end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. A
strengthening of the functional currency of the relevant
group entities against the above foreign currencies would
give rise to the following impact to post-tax profit for the
year and vice versa.

37. @MIR(%=E)

37b. IR EE R BEREE(E)

B R ()
() E¥RRE)

FTENNE T HEERE MR
E(#E)

TRFFMAEIIP A ERE N FERES
EEEENREEE(BEAR
BRI Kk BN
F R T BE 5% 2 BRLE © 5%H]
BRENMRESREEAE
HINEE RS E R RER L o
£ HA 5K B 500 B 4N B BB R 8
B FRRE R = BB E X
MANTHREL AR - ERBEE
EERE I ER i Faish
BRat  BLFERTE
BB E  RZIVA -

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Monetary assets and liabilities: BE¥MEERAE
Increase on post-tax profit for the year — FE 1454 1 hn
— HK dollars —BTT 22,343 15,346
— US dollars -7 40,987 25,298
Derivative financial instruments TS TA

During the year, the Group entered into a structured
foreign currency forward contract and several foreign
currency forward contracts with banks to reduce its
exposure to currency risk of US$ against RMB. The
structured foreign currency forward contract and foreign
currency forward contracts are not accounted for under
hedge accounting. The Group is required to estimate
the fair value of the derivative financial statements at the
end of the reporting period, which therefore exposed the
Group to foreign currency risk.
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37b.Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

@

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

Structured foreign currency forward contracts and foreign
currency forward contracts — not under hedge accounting

If the exchange rate of US$ against RMB had been
5% higher/lower while all other input variables of the
valuation models were held constant, the Group's post-
tax profit would (decrease) increase as follows:

Higher by 5% #hn5%
Derivative financial instruments PTEEmMITA

Lower by 5% 5%
Derivative financial instrument PTEEmTA

Interest rate risk
Non-derivative financial assets and liabilities

The Group's cash flow interest rate risks mainly relate
to its variable rate borrowings (see note 26 for details
of these borrowings). It is the Group’s policy to keep its
borrowings at fixed interest rate so as to minimise the
cash flow interest rate risk. The Group's bank balances
also have exposure to cash flow interest rate risk due to
the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate on
bank balances.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group cash flow interest rate risk
is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR and
LIBOR arising from the Group's HK dollars and US dollars
denominated borrowings.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED 3L THRAF

(For the year ended 31 December 2012) (#Z=2012F12A3181EFE)

37b.Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Non-derivative financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative
financial instruments at the end of the reporting period.
For variable rate bank borrowings, to the extent that
they are not hedged by effective instruments, and
bank balances, the analysis is prepared assuming the
stipulated change taking place at the beginning of the
financial year and held constant throughout both years
in the case of instruments that have floating rates. 10
(2011: 10) basis point and 50 (2011: 50) basis point
increase or decrease are used by the management for
the assessment of the possible change in interest rates of
variable rate bank balances and variable rate borrowings,
respectively.

If interest rates had been 10 basis point higher or lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group's
post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2012
would increase or decrease by HK$891,000 (2011:
HK$1,219,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group's
exposure to interest rates on its variable rate bank
balances.

If interest rates had been 50 basis point higher or lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group's
post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2012
would decrease or increase by HK$2,446,000 (2011:
HK$1,065,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group's
exposure to interest rates on its variable rate borrowings.

Derivative financial instruments

During the year, the Group entered into several interest
rate swap contracts with banks to reduce its exposure to
interest rate risk in relation to variable rate borrowings (see
note 26 for details of these borrowings). All outstanding
interest rate swap are accounted for under hedge
accounting except for one interest rate swap contract as
at 31 December 201 1. The Group is required to estimate
the fair value of the interest rate swap contracts at the
end of the reporting period, which therefore exposed the
Group to interest rate risk.
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37b.Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)
Derivative financial instruments (Continued)

Interest rate sensitivity

If forward interest rates had been 50 (2011: 50) basis
points higher and all other variable were held constant,
the Group's post-tax profit and equity would increase as
follows and vice versa:

At 31 December 2012
At 31 December 2011

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations in
relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the
carrying amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The Group is also exposed
to concentration of credit risk as a substantial portion of its
sales is generated from a limited number of customers. At
31 December 2012, the top five customers of the Group
accounted for about 21% (2011: 319%) of the Group's
trade receivables. The Group also granted loan and advance
to jointly controlled entities (note 21). In order to minimise
the credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated
a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the management reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt and loan/advance to jointly controlled
entity at the end of reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group's
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on bank deposits is limited because the

counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED 3L THRAF

(For the year ended 31 December 2012) (#Z=2012F12A3181EFE)

37b.Financial risk management objectives and policies 37b. B REKREE B ERBEK(E)

(Continued)
Liquidity risk

In the management of the Group's liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuation in cash flows.
The Group also has unutilised banking facilities (note 26) of
approximately HK$1,301,149,000 (2011: HK$371,098,000)
to meet its short-term working capital requirements. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and
ensure compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. Specifically, bank loans with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the earliest time band regardless of the
probability of the banks choosing to exercise their rights. The
maturity dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are
based on the agreed repayment dates. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows. To the extent the interest
flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived
from interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

In addition, the following table details the Group’s liquidity
analysis for its derivative financial instruments. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual net
cash (inflows) and outflows on derivative financial instruments
that settle on a net basis. When the amount payable is not
fixed, the amount disclosed has been determined by reference
to the projected interest rates as illustrated by the yield curves
existing at the end of the reporting period. The liquidity analysis
for the Group's derivative financial instruments are prepared
based on the contractual maturities as the management
consider that the contractual maturities are essential for an
understanding of the timing of the cash flows of derivatives.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

37b.Financial risk management objectives and policies

37. &@MTARE)

37b. I EREEEERKE(E)
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(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) THEEELEE(E)
Weighted
average Total
effective ~ On demand 31-60 61-90 91-365 Over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate o 0-30 days days days days 365days  cash flows amount
BB EZR il AR
EFIH 0-30% 31- 60% 61-90%  91-365% 365X REMEMH RAEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TER TiEn TR TR TR TER TR
As at 31 December 2012 20126128318
Non-derivative financial liabiliies FiitedEE
Nonvinterest bearing E56R - 69,441 5833 2,805 1,073 - 85,152 85,152
Fixed interest rate instruments ERIR 3.68 - - - - 207,360 207,360 200,000
Variable interest rate instruments BEEIR 258 38,696 - 92,285 90,716 1,023,936 1,245,633 1,216,956
108,137 5833 95,090 97,789 1,231,296 1,538,145 1,502,108
Derivative financial instruments ITE2BIA
— et settlement -BERE
Interest rate swaps it 1,816 88 88 1,m 4,482 1,585 1,466
~ Structured foreign curency —HElBIONE
forward contract i 181 180 180 811 926 2218 2273
1,997 268 268 1,922 5,408 9,863 9,739
Weighted
average Total
effecive ~ On demand 31-60 61-90 91-365 Over  undiscounted Carying
interestrate ~ or 0-30 days days days days 365 days cash flows amount
B EERT i) AR
TEHAH 0-30% 31-60% 61-90%  91-365% 5K ReRBE HAE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TEL ThL ThEL TR TEL THL TEL
As at 31 December 2011 #2011512A318
Non-derivative financial liabilties HiTEeRAKARE
Non-interest bearing 258G = 82,585 3473 1,120 7470 - 94,648 94,648
Variable interest rate instruments HZEI4 238 61,256 - 29473 132,808 764,444 987,981 966,748
143,841 3473 30,593 140,278 764,444 1,082,629 1,061,396
Derivative financial instruments 1TE2BIA
- net setlement -REFE
Interest rate swaps st 68 68 68 209 2825 3238 3,140
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(For the year ended 31 December 2012) (EZE2012F12A318IEFE)

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 37. @MIR(E)

37b. I RBREE BB REE(E)

37b.Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or 0-30 days” time band in
the above maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2012, the
aggregate carrying amounts of these bank loans amounted
to HK$38,696,000 (2011: HK$61,141,000). Taking into
account the Group's financial position, the directors do not
believe that it is probable that the banks will exercise their
discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment. The
directors believe that such bank loans will be repaid within one
to five years after the reporting date of 31 December 2012 in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the
loan agreements. The following table summarises the maturity
analysis of bank loans with a repayment on demand clause
based on agreed scheduled repayments set out in the loan
agreements.

mBELmE(E)

BB BER ESRE RIS RITE
SRTE Bt B ER D #Tat AL FE Eskk
0-30KJ 7R EEER - 72012
F12A318 - ZFHRITEEZK
HESEEA 538,696,000 )
(2011 : 61,141,000 7T ) ° 5t &
REBE MR RIE - EFTHEE
RITAREITHEHERKAIRER 2
1B - EEMRE  ZFRITEES
R2012F 12 A3 1 BRE HEE—
FERFRNRBERIBRASETET
ERAEEE - TRAEFZAFkE
B EREBIEXZIRITEER  BE
e R EERE R RS
T o

Weighted
average Total
effective 31-60 61-90 91-365 Over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 0-30 days days days days 365days  cash flows amount
BRRE il KR
ETSH 0-30% 31 - 60% 61-90%  91-365% 65K RedEd RAE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TEn TiEn TR Ti#n TR Ti#n TiEn
As at 31 December 2012 #2012512A318
Bank loans KA 221 1,346 1,353 1351 12,281 2,378 38,709 38,696
As at 31 December 2011 #2011512A318
Bank loans KA 230 7924 1421 1421 12,785 39,808 63359 61,141

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject
to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.
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37c. Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities is
determined as follows:

«  the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
(excluding derivative instruments) is determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based
on discounted cash flow analysis.

«  foreign currency forward contracts are measured by
discounted cash flow analysis using quoted forward
exchange rates. Interest rate swaps are measured by
discounted cash flow analysis using yield curves derived
from quoted interest rates matching maturities of the
contracts. Structured foreign currency forward contract is
measured using option pricing models.

The directors of the Group consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised
cost in the consolidated financial statements approximate their
fair values.

The following table provides an analysis of the financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition
at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree
to which the fair value is observable.

. Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical
assets or liabilities.

+  Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

«  Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED 3L THRAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mE SRR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2012) (EZE2012F12A318IEFE)

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 37. &8MIA(E)

37c. Fair value (Continued) 37c. A¥E(E)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
& B B/ Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHETT FHTT FHETT FHETT
31 December 2012 2012512A31H
Financial assets at FVTPL 2 FEEFA R
LR EE
Derivatives not under hedge  JEIR¥ & a1HE 26T
accounting ATA - 6,941 - 6,941
Financial liabilities at FVTPL A FIB(EFFA /825
k=4
Derivatives not under hedge ~ JHIR¥hEHEZ
accounting THETA - 2,273 - 2,273
Derivatives under hedge REHETHEZITE
accounting TA - 7,466 - 7,466
31 December 2011 20115128318
Financial liabilities at FVTPL &R -F(BIEF Az
k=4
Derivatives not under hedge ~ FEIRYF @A 207
accounting ATH = 177 = 177
Derivatives under hedge R R ETHEZ ITHE
accounting TA - 2,963 - 2,963

These were no transfers between 3 levels in both years.
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38. DERECOGNITION OF SUBSIDIARIES UPON SPIN-OFF

On 22 June 2011, as part of a reorganisation of the Group’s
businesses, the Company effected the Spin-off of the Handbag
Group by way of a distribution in specie to the Company's
shareholders on a pro rata basis.

The aggregate amounts of net assets of the Handbag Group on the
date of Spin-off were as follows:

Annual Report 2012 F 3

38. RO RBIERIZZHELT
R2011FE6H22H  tEAREEXKSE

AN —IR - ARFE B HIAAATE
ZERELBEYDIK - BFREEDH -

FREBRAWANFEELBELT

NET ASSETS DERECOGNISED HURERFEE
HK$'000
FHETT
Property, plant and equipment e N ] 54,639
Prepaid lease payments TR 18,017
Investment properties "EMHE 26,247
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, BEME  BEREE
plant and equipment Fifial& 964
Deferred tax asset RIERIAE B 4,538
Inventories FE 106,581
Trade and other receivables JEWE 5 I B fth FRIE 159,016
Tax recoverable A EIRIE 1,198
Bank balances and cash SRITHEB NI S 33,703
Trade and other payables FERTE 5 R E A FRIB (102,461)
Tax payable e IE (5,025)
Bank borrowings RITIER (102,365)
Net assets derecognised HUHBRFEE 195,052
Cumulative exchange differences in respect of ROFRHE AT FEEMERIER
the net assets of the subsidiaries reclassified from B RIRBRERFIESE 2 R5t
equity to retained profits on distribution in specie b =58 6,090
Net cash outflow arising on Spin-off AHFFRESREH
Bank balances and cash derecognised BURMER 2 SRITHEBR R ® (33,703)
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Financial Summary

LY

Year ended 31 December
BZ+-A=1+—HILEE

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET T FHETT FHET
RESULTS ES
Revenue 0| 1,064,177 1,403,428 2,138,808 2,155,710 1,520,512
Profit before taxation B A a Al 97,261 249,725 537,786 726,964 418,951
Income tax expenses FRiSHisz (10,038) (10,488) (71,969) (50,584) (57,014)
Profit for the year F N A 87,223 239,237 465,817 676,380 361,937
At 31 December
R+=—HA=+—H
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T FET FBT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERE®E
Total assets BERT 1,397,757 1,539,059 2,170,164 2,833,682 3,492,177
Total liabilities aEesE (742,078)  (681,210)  (870,866) (1,175,061) (1,598,338)
Net assets BEFRE 655,679 857,849 1,299,298 1,658,621 1,893,839
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Statement of Financial Position of the Company
ZAN/NSIE SO s

A summarised information statement of financial position of the  ZANAFIHR20124F12A31HK2011F12A31
Company as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 is as B ZB#RnRBMT
follows:

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FH&TT

ASSETS BE
Investments in a subsidiary WEBARIRE 160,188 129,174
Amount due from a subsidiary R EENEIVE /S 211,936 375,845
Prepayments TARTEIE 172 176
Bank balances RITEERR 230 317
372,526 505,512

LIABILITIES =N
Other payables H R 4,700 7,072
Bank borrowings RITEK 38,696 54,650
43,396 61,722
329,130 443790

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR#E

Share capital BR 82,500 82,500
Reserves (note) fEE () 246,630 361,290
329,130 443,790
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Statement of Financial Position of the Company
NN 20 B3 7 OV

note:

Reserves

#E

Share
Share Contributed Translation options Accumulated

premium surplus reserve reserve profits Total

RADBRE BHER EREE BREREE E i it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET

At 1 January 2011 R201141 818 20,307 112,338 - 66,304 559,849 759,298

Profit for the year FRmF) - - - - 2,269 2,269
Recognition of equity-settled RIARR A4 LARR S

share-based payments BE 7R - - - 62,370 = 62,370

Dividends BB = - - - (247,500) (247,500)

Distribution in specie MK - (215,146) - - (1)  (215,147)

At 31 December 2011 #2011412H31H 20307  (102,808) - 129,174 314,617 361,290

Profit for the year F A A - - - - 16,330 16,330
Recognition of equity-settled RUABRAE E LARR 7

share-based payments BEREZ N - - - 28,256 - 28,256

Dividends e = = = - (165000)  (165,000)

Exchange differences arising B8 E~ 2
from translation FEH =% - — 5,754 — — 5,754
At 31 December 2012 M20124F12A31H 20,307 (102,808) 5,754 157,430 165,947 246,630

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference between the aggregate
net tangible assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company pursuant to a group
reorganisation in December 2001 and the nominal value of the Company's shares issued for

the acquisition.
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